# QT IMAGING HOLDINGS, INC.

# Up to 43,795,000 Shares of Common Stock

# Up to 17,711,129 shares of Common Stock by the Selling Securityholders 889,364 Warrants to Purchase Shares of Common Stock

This prospectus supplement (this "Supplement No. 4") updates and supplements the prospectus dated May 22, 2024 (as further supplemented, the "Prospectus"), which forms a part of our Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-278460). This prospectus supplement is being filed to update and supplement the information in the Prospectus related to information contained in the following reports of the Company:

- The Company's Current Report on Form 8-K as filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") on August 8, 2024, which is attached hereto.
- The Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three months ended June 30, 2024, as filed with the SEC on August 8, 2024, which is attached hereto.

This Supplement No. 4 updates and supplements the information in the Prospectus and is not complete without, and may not be delivered or utilized except in combination with, the Prospectus, including any amendments or supplements thereto. This Supplement No. 4 should be read in conjunction with the Prospectus and if there is any inconsistency between the information in the Prospectus and this Supplement No. 4, you should rely on the information in this Supplement No. 4.

Our Common Stock is currently listed on the Nasdaq Stock Market (the "Nasdaq") and trades under the symbol "QTI."

Investing in our securities involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully review the risks and uncertainties that are described under the heading *"Risk Factors"* beginning on page 17 of the Prospectus and in any applicable prospectus supplement.

Neither the SEC nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of the securities to be issued under the Prospectus or this Supplement No. 4 or determined if this prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

The date of this prospectus supplement is August 8, 2024.

# UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

# FORM 8-K

# CURRENT REPORT Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Date of Report (Date of earliest event reported) August 8, 2024

# QT IMAGING HOLDINGS, INC.

(Exact name of Registrant as Specified in Charter)

Delaware

(State or Other Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Organization) <u>001-40839</u>

(Commission File Number) <u>86-1728920</u> (IRS Employer Identification Number)

3 Hamilton Landing, Suite 160

<u>Novato, CA 94949</u>

(Address of principal executive offices, including Zip Code)

(650) 276-7040

(Registrant's telephone number, including area code)

Check the appropriate box below if the Form 8-K filing is intended to simultaneously satisfy the filing obligation of the registrant under any of the following provisions (*see* General Instruction A.2. below):

□ Written communications pursuant to Rule 425 under the Securities Act (17 CFR 230.425)

□ Soliciting material pursuant to Rule 14a-12 under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.14a-12)

Pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rule 14d-2(b) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.14d-2(b))

Pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rule 13e-4(c) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.13e-4(c))

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of each class	Trading Symbols	Name of each exchange on which registered
Common stock, \$0.0001 par value	QTI	The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an emerging growth company as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act of 1933 (§230.405 of this chapter) or Rule 12b-2 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (§240.12b-2 of this chapter).

Emerging growth company  $\boxtimes$ 

If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying with any new or revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act.

# Item 2.02 Results of Operations and Financial Condition.

On August 8, 2024, QT Imaging Holdings, Inc. (the "<u>Company</u>") issued a press release announcing its financial results for the three months ended June 30, 2024. A copy of the press release is attached as Exhibit 99.1 to this Current Report on Form 8-K (this "<u>Current Report</u>") and is incorporated by reference herein.

The information included in Item 2.02, and Exhibit 99.1 attached hereto, is being furnished and shall not be deemed "filed" with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "<u>SEC</u>") for the purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "<u>Exchange Act</u>"), or otherwise subject to the liabilities of that section, and shall not be deemed incorporated by reference in any registration statement filed by the Company under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "<u>Securities Act</u>"), or the Exchange Act, regardless of any general incorporation language in any such filing.

#### Item 8.01 Other Events.

The information contained in, or incorporated into, Item 2.02 above is incorporated herein by reference.

Please refer to Exhibit 99.1 for a discussion of certain forward-looking statements included therein and the risks and uncertainties related thereto.

#### Item 9.01 Financial Statements and Exhibits.

(d) Exhibits:

Exhibit No.	Description
99.1	Press release dated August 8, 2024
104	Cover Page Interactive Data File (embedded within the Inline XBRL document)

# **SIGNATURE**

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

Dated: August 8, 2024

By: /s/ Raluca Dinu

Name:Raluca DinuTitle:Chief Executive Officer

# UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

# **FORM 10-Q**

(Mark One)

**QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934** 

For the quarterly period ended June 30, 2024

OR

**TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934** 

For the transition period from \_\_\_\_\_\_ to \_\_\_\_

Commission file number 001-40839

# QT Imaging Holdings, Inc.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

3 Hamilton Landing, Suite 160 Novato, CA (Address of Principal Executive Offices) 86-1728920 (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

**94949** (Zip Code)

(650) 276-7040

Registrant's telephone number, including area code

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of each class	Trading Symbol(s)	Name of each exchange on which registered
Common Stock, par value \$0.0001 per share	QTI	The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes  $\boxtimes$  No  $\square$ 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically every Interactive Data File required to be submitted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§ 232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit such files). Yes  $\boxtimes$  No  $\square$ 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, a smaller reporting company, or an emerging growth company. See the definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer," "smaller reporting company," and "emerging growth company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer		Accelerated filer	
Non-accelerated filer	$\boxtimes$	Smaller reporting company	X
		Emerging growth company	X

If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying with any new or revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). Yes 🗆 No 🗵

As of August 7, 2024, the registrant had 21,441,416 shares of common stock, \$0.0001 par value per share, outstanding.

# Table of Contents

	Page
Part I. Financial Information	i
Item 1. Financial Statements	i
Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	32
Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	49
Item 4. Controls and Procedures	49
Part II. Other Information	51
Item 1. Legal Proceedings	51
Item 1A. Risk Factors	51
Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds	55
Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities	55
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures	55
Item 5. Other Information	55
Item 6. Exhibits	56
Signatures	57

# Part I. Financial Information

Item 1. Financial Statements

# QT IMAGING HOLDINGS, INC. Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets (Unaudited)

		June 30, 2024	]	December 31, 2023
ASSETS				
Current assets:				
Cash	\$	4,581,140	\$	164,686
Restricted cash and cash equivalents		20,000		20,000
Accounts receivable, net		669,138		1,290
Inventory		3,354,677		4,418,197
Prepaid expenses and other current assets		869,472		214,979
Total current assets		9,494,427		4,819,152
Property and equipment, net		141,659		490,920
Intangible assets, net		_		90,139
Operating lease right-of-use assets, net		1,104,784		1,267,121
Other assets		39,150		39,150
Total assets	\$	10,780,020	\$	6,706,482
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT				
Current liabilities:				
Accounts payable	\$	549,583	\$	1,355,512
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities		4,192,015		369,651
Related party notes payable		5,408,725		705,000
Current maturities of long-term debt		4,294,209		4,199,362
Derivative liability		408,100		_
Deferred revenue		31,746		347,619
Operating lease liabilities, current		382,964		361,305
Total current liabilities		15,267,342		7,338,449
Long-term debt		36,698		95,982
Related party notes payable		_		3,143,725
Operating lease liabilities		866,761		1,062,633
Warrant liability		18,588		_
Earnout liability		750,000		_
Other liabilities		_		377,772
Total liabilities		16,939,389		12,018,561
Contingencies (Note 10)				
Stockholders' deficit:				
Preferred stock, \$0.0001 par value; 10,000,000 shares authorized; no shares issued and outstanding		_		_
Common stock, \$0.0001 par value; 500,000,000 and 100,000,000 shares authorized as of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively; 21,441,416 and 9,575,925 shares issued and outstanding as of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2022, respectively; (1)	1	2 144		0.59
and December 31, 2023, respectively (1)		2,144		958
Additional paid-in capital (1)		22,341,598		12,457,108
Accumulated deficit		(28,503,111)		(17,770,145)
Total stockholders' deficit	0	(6,159,369)	¢	(5,312,079)
Total liabilities and stockholders' deficit	\$	10,780,020	\$	6,706,482

(1) Amounts as of December 31, 2023 differ from those in prior year consolidated financial statements as they were retrospectively adjusted as a result of the accounting or the Business Combination (as defined in the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements).

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.

# QT IMAGING HOLDINGS, INC. Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss (Unaudited)

	Three Mo Jun	nths e 30,			ths Ended e 30,		
	2024		2023	2024		2023	
Revenue	\$ 1,714,035	\$	3,183	\$ 3,076,198	\$	10,747	
Cost of revenue	839,484		3,121	1,441,567		49,698	
Gross profit (loss)	 874,551		62	 1,634,631		(38,951)	
Operating expenses:							
Research and development	925,082		349,657	1,567,628		771,544	
Selling, general and administrative	2,169,541		848,831	7,865,752		2,140,596	
Total operating expenses	 3,094,623		1,198,488	 9,433,380		2,912,140	
Loss from operations	(2,220,072)		(1,198,426)	 (7,798,749)		(2,951,091)	
Other expense, net	(187,394)		_	(208,325)		_	
Change in fair value of warrant liability	213,942		_	190,819		_	
Change in fair value of derivative liability	1,729,700		_	4,712,800		_	
Change in fair value of earnout liability	310,000		_	(750,000)		_	
Interest expense, net	 (1,095,050)		(131,588)	 (1,694,009)		(261,870)	
Net loss and comprehensive loss attributable to QT Imaging Holdings, Inc.	\$ (1,248,874)	\$	(1,330,014)	\$ (5,547,464)	\$	(3,212,961)	
Less: deemed dividend related to the modification of equity classified warrants	(5,185,502)		_	(5,185,502)		_	
Net loss and comprehensive loss attributable to common stockholders	\$ (6,434,376)	\$	(1,330,014)	\$ (10,732,966)	\$	(3,212,961)	
Net loss per share - basic and diluted (1)	\$ (0.30)	\$	(0.14)	\$ (0.62)	\$	(0.34)	
Weighted-average number of common shares used in computing net loss per common share (1)	 21,440,447		9,540,533	 17,333,000		9,528,880	

(1) Amounts for the three and six months ended June 30, 2023 and before that date differ from those in prior year condensed consolidated financial statements as they were retrospectively adjusted as a result of the accounting or the Business Combination (as defined in the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements).

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.

# QT IMAGING HOLDINGS, INC. Condensed Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Deficit For the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 (Unaudited)

	Commo	on Stock	Additional Paid-in	Accumulated	
	Shares	Amount	Capital	 Deficit	 Total
Balance, March 31, 2024	21,437,216	\$ 2,144	\$ 17,152,441	\$ (22,068,735)	\$ (4,914,150)
Issuance of common stock to settle transaction expenses	4,200	_	3,655	_	3,655
Deemed dividend related to warrant modification	_	_	5,185,502	(5,185,502)	_
Net loss	—	—	—	(1,248,874)	(1,248,874)
Balance, June 30, 2024	21,441,416	\$ 2,144	\$ 22,341,598	\$ (28,503,111)	\$ (6,159,369)

	Commo	on Stock		Additional Paid-in	Accumulated	
	Shares	Amount	-	Capital	Deficit	Total
Balance, March 31, 2023 (1)	9,535,648	\$ 953	\$	11,327,842	\$ (13,554,141)	\$ (2,225,346)
Sale of common stock and warrants in private offering, net (1)	5,995	1		69,999	_	70,000
Stock-based compensation	_	_		208,627	_	208,627
Net loss	—	—		—	(1,330,014)	(1,330,014)
Balance, June 30, 2023	9,541,643	\$ 954	\$	11,606,468	\$ (14,884,155)	\$ (3,276,733)

	Commo	on Sto	ck	Additional Paid-in	Accumulated	
	Shares		Amount	Capital	Deficit	Total
Balance, January 1, 2024	27,941,290	\$	27,941	\$ 12,430,125	\$ (17,770,145)	\$ (5,312,079)
Reverse recapitalization	(18,365,365)		(26,983)	26,983	—	_
As adjusted, beginning of period (1)	9,575,925		958	12,457,108	 (17,770,145)	 (5,312,079)
Merger recapitalization	7,898,954		790	(9,269,955)	—	(9,269,165)
Issuance of common stock pursuant to a subscription agreement	200,000		20	705,980	_	706,000
Conversion of a note payable	359,266		36	3,233,352	—	3,233,388
Conversion of a bridge loan	100,000		10	199,990	—	200,000
Net exercise of warrants	5,594		1	(1)	—	_
Issuance of common stock in connection with the Pre-Paid Advance	1,000,000		100	1,866,184	_	1,866,284
Issuance of common stock in connection with the Cable Car Loan	180,000		18	446,315	_	446,333
Issuance of common stock related to non- redemption extension agreements	427,477		42	1,508,951	_	1,508,993
Issuance of common stock related to early investor consideration	150,000		15	529,485	_	529,500
Issuance of common stock to settle transaction expenses	1,544,200		154	5,439,703	_	5,439,857
Stock-based compensation	—		—	38,984	—	38,984
Deemed dividend related to modification of equity classified warrants	_		_	5,185,502	(5,185,502)	_
Net loss	_			_	(5,547,464)	(5,547,464)
Balance, June 30, 2024	21,441,416	\$	2,144	\$ 22,341,598	\$ (28,503,111)	\$ (6,159,369)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.

# QT IMAGING HOLDINGS, INC. Condensed Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Deficit For the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 (Unaudited)

	Commo	on Sto	ock	Additional Paid-in	Accumulated	
	Shares		Amount	Capital	Deficit	Total
Balance, January 1, 2023	27,580,040	\$	27,580	\$ 10,136,037	\$ (11,671,194)	\$ (1,507,577)
Reverse recapitalization	(18,127,929)		(26,635)	26,635	—	—
As adjusted, beginning of period (1)	9,452,111		945	 10,162,672	 (11,671,194)	 (1,507,577)
Sale of common stock and warrants in private offering, net	89,532		9	1,026,541	_	1,026,550
Stock-based compensation	_		_	417,255	_	417,255
Net loss			—	—	(3,212,961)	(3,212,961)
Balance, June 30, 2023 (1)	9,541,643	\$	954	\$ 11,606,468	\$ (14,884,155)	\$ (3,276,733)

(1) Amounts as of December 31, 2023 and before that date differ from those in prior year consolidated financial statements as they were retrospectively adjusted as a result of the accounting or the Business Combination (as defined in the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements).

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.

# QT IMAGING HOLDINGS, INC. Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited)

sh flows from operating activities: Net loss Net loss Net loss Net loss Net loss Net loss S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S	Ionths Endeo June 30,			
Net loss       \$ (5,547,464         Adjustment to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:       184,773         Stock-based compensation       38,984         Warrant modification expense       200,511         Provision for credit losses       1,290         Fair value of common stock is sued in exchange for services and in connection with non-redemption agreements       3,718,344         Loss on issuance of common stock in connection with a subscription agreement       200,611         Non-cash operating lease expense       (11,876         Change in fair value of derivative liability       (190,815         Change in fair value of aernout liability       (190,815         Change in fair value of aernout liability       (190,815         Change in fair value of derivative liability       (190,815         Other assets		2023		
Adjustment to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:       184,77:         Depreciation and amortization       184,77:         Stock-based compensation       38,98         Warrant modification expense       200,51:         Provision for credit losses       1,29         Fair value of common stock issued in exchange for services and in connection with non-redemption agreements       3,718,34:         Loss on issuance of common stock in connection with a subscription agreement       1,200,67         Non-cash interest       1,200,67         Non-cash operating lease expense       (11,137         Loss on disposal of assets       -         Change in fair value of erivative hability       (190,815         Change in fair value of erivative hability       (190,815         Changes in fair value of erivative hability       (2,800,132         Othage in fair value of erivative hability       (669,133         Inventory       1,352,73         Other assets       -         Accounts receivable       (653,409)         Other assets       -         Accounts receivable       (653,609)         Other assets       -         Accounts payable       (2,280,532         Accounts payable       (2,280,532         Accounts payable	- •> •			
Depreciation and amortization       184,773         Stock-based compensation       38,984         Warrant modification expense       200,511         Provision for credit losses       1,290         Fair value of common stock issued in exchange for services and in connection with non-redemption agreements       3,718,344         Loss on issuance of common stock in connection with a subscription agreement       1,200,671         Non-cash interest       -         Change in fair value of varrant liability       (19,0815         Change in fair value of varrant liability       (4,712,800         Change in fair value of earnout liability       720,000         Changes in operating assets and liabilities:       -         Accounts receivable       (669,138         Inventory       1,352,735         Prepaid expenses and other current assets       (228,0533         Other labilities       (315,873         Other labilities       (317,772         Net cash used in operating activities       (26,977         Net cash used in investing activities       -         Proceeds from issuance common stock and warrants, net of issuance costs       -         Proceeds from issuance common stock and warrants, net of issuance costs       -         Proceeds from isuance common stock and warrants, net of issuance costs	54) \$	(3,212,961		
Shock-based compensation       38.98.9         Warrant modification expense       200,511         Provision for credit losses       1.290         Fair value of common stock issued in exchange for services and in connection with non-redemption agreements       3,718,344         Loss on issuance of common stock in connection with a subscription agreement       206,600         Non-cash interest       1,200,670         Non-cash interest       -         Change in fair value of derivative liability       (4,712,800         Change in fair value of derivative liability       (4,712,800         Change in fair value of derivative liabilities:       -         Accounts receivable       (669,138         Inventory       1,352,733         Prepaid expenses and other current assets       (553,691         Other assets       -         Accounts preceivable       (669,138         Inventory       (31,8527)         Deferred revenue       (31,872,772         Other liabilities       (37,772         Other liabilities       (37,772         Ver cash used in operating activities       (26,977,772         Net cash used in investing activities       (26,977,772         Net cash used in investing activities       (26,977,772         Sh flows from finaneing				
Warrant modification expense       200,51:         Provision for cerdit losses       1,290         Fair value of common stock issued in exchange for services and in connection with non-redemption agreements       3,718,344         Loss on sisuance of common stock in connection with a subscription agreement       200,670         Non-cash interest       1,200,670         Non-cash operating lease expense       (11,877         Change in fair value of warrant liability       (190,815         Change in fair value of derivative liability       (4,712,800         Change in fair value of derivative liabilities:       750,000         Change in fair value of aemout liabilities:       (669,135         Accounts receivable       (669,135         Inventory       1,352,734         Prepaid expenses and other current assets       (53,807)         Other liabilities       51,577         Deferred revenue       (315,872)         Other liabilities       (26,977,772)         Net cash used in operating activities       (26,977,772)         Net cash used in operating activities       (26,977,772)         Net cash used in investing activities       (26,977,772)         Net cash used in investing activities       (26,977,772)         Net cash used in investing activities       (26,977,772)		232,861		
Provision for credit losses       1,290         Fair value of common stock issued in exchange for services and in connection with non-redemption agreements       3,718,344         Loss on issuance of common stock in connection with a subscription agreement       206,000         Non-cash interest       1,200,677         Non-cash operating lease expense       (11,876         Change in fair value of derivative liability       (4,712,800         Change in fair value of derivative liability       (4,712,800         Change in fair value of earnout liabilities:       750,000         Change in operating assets and liabilities:       (669,133         Inventory       1,352,733         Prepaid expenses and other current assets       (553,691         Other assets          Accounts receivable       (669,133         Inventory       (1,357,733         Other assets       (553,691         Other assets       (51,577         Deferred revenue       (315,873         Other liabilities       (51,577         Deferred revenue       (26,975,021         Net cash used in operating activities       (26,977,021         Net cash used in investing activities       (26,977,021         Preaceds from slae of common stock and varrants, net of issuance costs       - <td></td> <td>417,255</td>		417,255		
Fair value of common stock issued in exchange for services and in connection with non-redemption agreements       3,718,343         Loss on issuance of common stock in connection with a subscription agreement       2006,000         Non-cash interest       1,200,671         Non-cash interest				
agreements 3,718,344 Loss on issuance of common stock in connection with a subscription agreement 2006,000 Non-cash interest 1,200,671 Non-cash operating lease expense (11,877 Loss on disposal of assets	90	_		
Non-cash interest1,200,67Non-cash operating lease expense(11,870Loss on disposal of assets—Change in fair value of varrant liability(190,815Change in fair value of varrant liability(190,815Change in fair value of earnout liability750,000Changes in operating assets and liabilities:(669,135Accounts receivable(669,135Inventory1,352,734Prepaid expenses and other current assets(553,691Other assets—Accounts payable(2,280,535Accrued expenses and other current liabilities\$1,577Deferred revenue(315,873Other liabilities(317,772Other liabilities(317,772Net cash used in operating activities(6,955,081sh flows from investing activities:—Proceeds from sale of common stock and warrants, net of issuance costs—Proceeds from slaue of common stock and warrants, net of issuance costs—Proceeds from sisuance costs——Proceeds from sisuance costs1,238,531Net cash provided by financing activities1,338,512Net cash provided by financing activities1,338,512Net cash and cash equivalents4,416,455sh and restricted cash and cash equivalents4,416,455sh and restricted cash a	49	_		
Non-cash operating lease expense       (11,876         Loss on disposal of assets       —         Change in fair value of warrant liability       (19,816         Change in fair value of earnout liability       (4,712,800         Changes in operating assets and liabilities:       (669,135         Accounts receivable       (669,135         Inventory       (1,352,734         Prepaid expenses and other current assets       (553,691         Other assets       —         Accounts payable       (2,280,535         Accrued expenses and other current liabilities       51,577         Other liabilities       (315,873         Other liabilities       (315,873         Other liabilities       (317,777         Net cash used in operating activities       (26,977         Net cash used in operating activities       (26,977         Net cash used in investing activities       —         Proceeds from slae of common stock and warrants, net of issuance costs       —         Proceeds from long-term debt       (65,018         Repayment of bridge loans       (60,012         Net cash used on experiend expresses       —         Proceeds from long-term debt       (50,018         Repayment of bridge loans       (60,012	00	_		
Loss on disposal of assets — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —	70	21,54		
Loss on disposal of assets — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —	76)	(4,124		
Change in fair value of varrant liability(190,815Change in fair value of earnout liability(4,712,800Changes in operating assets and liabilities:750,000Changes in operating assets and liabilities:(669,135Accounts receivable(669,135Inventory1,352,733Prepaid expenses and other current assets(553,691Other assets-Accounts payable(2,280,535Accrued expenses and other current liabilities51,577Deferred revenue(315,873Other liabilities(57,772Net cash used in operating activities(6,955,081sh flows from investing activities:(26,977,772Net cash used in operating activities(26,977,772sh flows from financing activities:(26,977,772Purchases of property and equipment(26,977,772sh flows from financing activities:(26,977,772Proceeds from sale of common stock and warrants, net of issuance costs-Proceeds from sale of common stock pursuant to subscription agreement500,000Proceeds from long-term debt, net of issuance costs-Proceeds from the Merger, net of transaction costs1,238,531Net cash provided by financing activities1,238,532Net cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year1,238,532Net cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year1,238,532Net cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year1,238,532Net cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year1,238,531Net cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year </td <td></td> <td>124</td>		124		
Change in fair value of earnout liability       750,000         Changes in operating assets and liabilities:       (669,138         Accounts receivable       (669,138         Inventory       1,352,73         Prepaid expenses and other current assets       (553,691         Other assets	19)	_		
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:       (669,135         Accounts receivable       (669,135         Inventory       1,352,734         Prepaid expenses and other current assets       (2,280,535         Accounts payable       (2,280,535         Accounts payable       (315,873         Other assets       51,577         Deferred revenue       (315,873         Other liabilities       (377,772         Net cash used in operating activities       (6,955,081         sh flows from investing activities:       (26,977         Purchases of property and equipment       (26,977         Net cash used in investing activities       (26,977         sh flows from financing activities:       7         Proceeds from slae of common stock and warrants, net of issuance costs       7         Proceeds from issuance costs       7         Proceeds from long-term debt       (65,018         Repayment of long-term debt       (65,018         Repayment of bridge loans       7         Proceeds from related party payable       7         Proceeds from the Merger, net of transaction costs       1,238,530         Net cash provided by financing activities       11,398,511         et increase (decreasec) in cash and restricted cash and cash equivalents, be	)0)	_		
Accounts receivable(669,138Inventory1,352,734Prepaid expenses and other current assets(553,694)Other assetsAccounts payable(2,280,535Accrued expenses and other current liabilities51,577Deferred revenue(315,873Other liabilities(377,772Net cash used in operating activities(6,955,081Sh flows from investing activities:(26,977Net cash used in investing activities(26,977Net cash used in investing activities(26,977Net cash used in investing activities(26,977Sh flows from financing activities:Proceeds from sale of common stock and warrants, net of issuance costsProceeds from long-term debt, net of issuance costsProceeds from long-term debt(65,016)Repayment of long-term debt(65,000Proceeds from related party payableProceeds from telated party payableProceeds from the Merger, net of transaction costs11,238,533Net cash and restricted cash and cash equivalents4,416,455sh and restricted cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year184,680sh and restricted cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year\$Cash paid for interest\$161,011pplemental disclosures of noncash investing and financing activities:\$Purchases of equipment included in accrued expenses\$7,611	00	-		
Accounts receivable(669,138Inventory1,352,734Prepaid expenses and other current assets(553,694)Other assetsAccounts payable(2,280,535Accrued expenses and other current liabilities51,577Deferred revenue(315,873Other liabilities(377,772Net cash used in operating activities(6,955,081Sh flows from investing activities:(26,977Net cash used in investing activities(26,977Net cash used in investing activities(26,977Net cash used in investing activities(26,977Sh flows from financing activities:Proceeds from sale of common stock and warrants, net of issuance costsProceeds from long-term debt, net of issuance costsProceeds from long-term debt(65,016)Repayment of long-term debt(65,000Proceeds from related party payableProceeds from telated party payableProceeds from the Merger, net of transaction costs11,238,533Net cash and restricted cash and cash equivalents4,416,455sh and restricted cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year184,680sh and restricted cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year\$Cash paid for interest\$161,011pplemental disclosures of noncash investing and financing activities:\$Purchases of equipment included in accrued expenses\$7,611				
Inventory1,352,73Prepaid expenses and other current assets(553,691Other assets—Accounts payable(2,280,535Accrued expenses and other current liabilities51,577Deferred revenue(315,873Other liabilities(377,772Net cash used in operating activities(377,772Net cash used in operating activities(26,977Net cash used in investing activities(26,977Proceeds from financing activities—Proceeds from sisuance common stock pursuant to subscription agreement500,000Proceeds from long-term debt(65,018Repayment of long-term debt(65,018Repayment of bridge loans(800,000Proceeds from the Merger, net of transaction costs1,238,530Net cash provided by financing activities11,398,511et increase (decrease) in cash and restricted cash and cash equivalents4,416,452sh and restricted cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year\$ 4,601,140pplemental disclosure of cash flow information:1184,688cash paid for interest\$ 4,601,140pplemental disclosures of noncash investing and financing acti	38)	_		
Prepaid expenses and other current assets(553,691Other assets-Accounts payable(2,280,535Accrued expenses and other current liabilities(315,877Deferred revenue(315,877Other liabilities(377,772Net cash used in operating activities(6,955,081sh flows from investing activities:(26,977Purchases of property and equipment(26,977Net cash used in investing activities(26,977Net cash used in investing activities(26,977Proceeds from sale of common stock and warrants, net of issuance costs-Proceeds from sale of common stock pursuant to subscription agreement500,000Proceeds from long-term debt(65,018Repayment of bridge loans(800,000Proceeds from related party payable-Proceeds from related party payable-Proceeds from telated party payable-Proceeds from telated party payable-Proceeds from telated party payable-Proceeds from telated party payable-It increase (decrease) in cash and restricted cash and cash equivalents4,416,452sh and restricted cash and cash equivalents, end of year184,680sh and restricted cash and cash equivalents, end of year\$ 4,601,140pplemental disclosures of noncash investing and financing activities:-Purchases of equipment included in accrued expenses\$ 7,612Purchases of equipment included in accrued expenses\$ 7,612		53,86		
Other assets       —         Accounts payable       (2,280,535         Accrued expenses and other current liabilities       51,577         Deferred revenue       (315,873         Other liabilities       (377,772         Net cash used in operating activities       (6,955,081         Purchases of property and equipment       (26,977         Net cash used in investing activities       (26,977         Net cash used in investing activities       (26,977         Net cash used in investing activities       (26,977         Purchases of property and equipment       (26,977         Net cash used in investing activities       (26,977         Proceeds from financing activities:       (26,977         Proceeds from sale of common stock and warrants, net of issuance costs       —         Proceeds from isonacce common stock pursuant to subscription agreement       500,000         Proceeds from long-term debt, net of issuance costs       10,525,001         Repayment of bridge loans       (800,000         Proceeds from the Merger, net of transaction costs       12,238,533         Net cash provided by financing activities       11,398,512         et increase (decrease) in cash and restricted cash and cash equivalents       4,416,454         sh and restricted cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year		(40,55		
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities51,57Deferred revenue(315,873Other liabilities(377,772Net cash used in operating activities(6,955,081sh flows from investing activities:(26,977Purchases of property and equipment(26,977Net cash used in investing activities(26,977Sh flows from financing activities:(26,977Proceeds from sale of common stock and warrants, net of issuance costs-Proceeds from issuance common stock pursuant to subscription agreement500,000Proceeds from long-term debt, net of issuance costs10,525,000Repayment of long-term debt(65,018Repayment of long-term debt(800,000Proceeds from related party payable-Proceeds from the Merger, net of transaction costs12,38,533Net cash provided by financing activities11,398,512et increase (decrease) in cash and restricted cash and cash equivalents4,416,452sh and restricted cash and cash equivalents, end of year\$ 4,601,144pplemental disclosure of cash flow information:\$ 161,013Cash paid for interest\$ 161,013pplemental disclosures of noncash investing and financing activities:\$ 161,013Purchases of equipment included in accrued expenses\$ 7,613	_	10,00		
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities51,57Deferred revenue(315,873Other liabilities(377,772Net cash used in operating activities(6,955,081sh flows from investing activities:(26,977Purchases of property and equipment(26,977Net cash used in investing activities(26,977Sh flows from financing activities:(26,977Proceeds from sale of common stock and warrants, net of issuance costs-Proceeds from issuance common stock pursuant to subscription agreement500,000Proceeds from long-term debt, net of issuance costs10,525,000Repayment of long-term debt(65,018Repayment of long-term debt(800,000Proceeds from related party payable-Proceeds from the Merger, net of transaction costs12,38,533Net cash provided by financing activities11,398,512et increase (decrease) in cash and restricted cash and cash equivalents4,416,452sh and restricted cash and cash equivalents, end of year\$ 4,601,144pplemental disclosure of cash flow information:\$ 161,013Cash paid for interest\$ 161,013pplemental disclosures of noncash investing and financing activities:\$ 161,013Purchases of equipment included in accrued expenses\$ 7,613	35)	785,74		
Deferred revenue(315,873Other liabilities(377,772Net cash used in operating activities(6,955,081Purchases of property and equipment(26,977Net cash used in investing activities(26,977Net cash used in investing activities(26,977sh flows from financing activities:(26,977Proceeds from sale of common stock and warrants, net of issuance costs-Proceeds from issuance common stock pursuant to subscription agreement500,000Proceeds from long-term debt, net of issuance costs10,525,000Repayment of long-term debt(65,018Repayment of bridge loans(800,000Proceeds from related party payable-Proceeds from the Merger, net of transaction costs1,238,530Net cash and restricted cash and cash equivalents4,416,454sh and restricted cash and cash equivalents\$ 4,601,144pplemental disclosure of cash flow information:\$ 161,013Cash paid for interest\$ 161,013pplemental disclosures of noncash investing and financing activities:\$ 161,013Purchases of equipment included in accrued expenses\$ 7,613	,	(23,97		
Other liabilities       (377,772         Net cash used in operating activities       (6,955,081         Purchases of property and equipment       (26,977         Net cash used in investing activities       (26,977         Sh flows from financing activities:       (26,977         Proceeds from sale of common stock and warrants, net of issuance costs       -         Proceeds from issuance common stock pursuant to subscription agreement       500,000         Proceeds from long-term debt, net of issuance costs       10,525,000         Repayment of long-term debt       (65,018         Repayment of bridge loans       (800,000         Proceeds from related party payable       -         Proceeds from the Merger, net of transaction costs       11,398,512         t increase (decrease) in cash and restricted cash and cash equivalents       4,416,455         sh and restricted cash and cash equivalents       4,401,456         sh and restricted cash and cash equivalents, end of year       184,680         sh and restricted cash flow information:       5         Cash paid for interest       \$       161,012         pplemental disclosure of noncash investing and financing activities:       \$       161,012         Purchases of equipment included in accrued expenses       \$       7,612		_		
Net cash used in operating activities(6,955,081)sh flows from investing activities:(26,977)Purchases of property and equipment(26,977)Net cash used in investing activities(26,977)Net cash used in investing activities:(26,977)Proceeds from sale of common stock and warrants, net of issuance costsProceeds from issuance common stock pursuant to subscription agreement500,000Proceeds from long-term debt, net of issuance costs10,525,000Repayment of long-term debt(65,018)Repayment of bridge loans(800,000)Proceeds from related party payableProceeds from the Merger, net of transaction costs11,238,530Net cash and restricted cash and cash equivalents4,416,454sh and restricted cash and cash equivalents4,416,454sh and restricted cash and cash equivalents11,398,512et increase (decrease) in cash and restricted cash and cash equivalents11,438,512et an trestricted cash and cash equivalents4,416,454sh and restricted cash and cash equivalents11,416,454sh and restricted cash flow info		238,81		
Purchases of property and equipment       (26,977)         Net cash used in investing activities       (26,977)         Ish flows from financing activities:       (26,977)         Proceeds from sale of common stock and warrants, net of issuance costs		(1,521,39		
Net cash used in investing activities(26,977)sh flows from financing activities:Proceeds from sale of common stock and warrants, net of issuance costs				
sh flows from financing activities:	77)	(1,12		
Proceeds from sale of common stock and warrants, net of issuance costs—Proceeds from issuance common stock pursuant to subscription agreement500,000Proceeds from long-term debt, net of issuance costs10,525,000Repayment of long-term debt(65,018Repayment of bridge loans(800,000Proceeds from related party payable—Proceeds from the Merger, net of transaction costs11,238,530Net cash provided by financing activities11,398,512et increase (decrease) in cash and restricted cash and cash equivalents4,416,454sh and restricted cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year184,680ish and restricted cash and cash equivalents\$ 4,601,140pplemental disclosure of cash flow information: Cash paid for interest\$ 161,013Purchases of equipment included in accrued expenses\$ 7,613	77)	(1,12		
Proceeds from issuance common stock pursuant to subscription agreement500,000Proceeds from long-term debt, net of issuance costs10,525,000Repayment of long-term debt(65,018Repayment of bridge loans(800,000Proceeds from related party payable				
Proceeds from long-term debt, net of issuance costs10,525,000Repayment of long-term debt(65,018Repayment of bridge loans(800,000Proceeds from related party payable	_	1,017,85		
Repayment of long-term debt(65,018Repayment of bridge loans(800,000Proceeds from related party payable		-		
Repayment of bridge loans(800,000Proceeds from related party payable—Proceeds from the Merger, net of transaction costs1,238,530Net cash provided by financing activities11,398,512et increase (decrease) in cash and restricted cash and cash equivalents4,416,454ish and restricted cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year184,680ish and restricted cash and cash equivalents, end of year\$ 4,601,140pplemental disclosure of cash flow information:\$ 161,013Cash paid for interest\$ 161,013pplemental disclosures of noncash investing and financing activities:\$ 7,613Purchases of equipment included in accrued expenses\$ 7,613	00	-		
Proceeds from related party payable       –         Proceeds from the Merger, net of transaction costs       1,238,530         Net cash provided by financing activities       11,398,512         et increase (decrease) in cash and restricted cash and cash equivalents       4,416,454         ish and restricted cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year       184,680         ish and restricted cash and cash equivalents, end of year       \$ 4,601,140         pplemental disclosure of cash flow information:       *         Cash paid for interest       \$ 161,013         pplemental disclosures of noncash investing and financing activities:       *         Purchases of equipment included in accrued expenses       \$ 7,613		(64,36		
Proceeds from the Merger, net of transaction costs       1,238,530         Net cash provided by financing activities       11,398,512         et increase (decrease) in cash and restricted cash and cash equivalents       4,416,454         ish and restricted cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year       184,680         ish and restricted cash and cash equivalents, end of year       \$ 4,601,140         pplemental disclosure of cash flow information:       \$ 161,013         Cash paid for interest       \$ 161,013         pplemental disclosures of noncash investing and financing activities:       \$ 7,613         Purchases of equipment included in accrued expenses       \$ 7,613	)0)	-		
Net cash provided by financing activities11,398,512et increase (decrease) in cash and restricted cash and cash equivalents4,416,454et increase (decrease) in cash and restricted cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year184,686et ind restricted cash and cash equivalents, end of year\$ 4,601,140sh and restricted cash and cash equivalents, end of year\$ 161,012pplemental disclosure of cash flow information:\$ 161,012Cash paid for interest\$ 161,012pplemental disclosures of noncash investing and financing activities:\$ 7,612Purchases of equipment included in accrued expenses\$ 7,612	_	350,00		
et increase (decrease) in cash and restricted cash and cash equivalents       4,416,454         ish and restricted cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year       184,686         ish and restricted cash and cash equivalents, end of year       \$ 4,601,140         pplemental disclosure of cash flow information:       \$ 161,013         Cash paid for interest       \$ 161,013         pplemental disclosures of noncash investing and financing activities:       \$ 7,613         Purchases of equipment included in accrued expenses       \$ 7,613	30	-		
ash and restricted cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year       184,680         ash and restricted cash and cash equivalents, end of year       \$ 4,601,140         pplemental disclosure of cash flow information:       5         Cash paid for interest       \$ 161,013         pplemental disclosures of noncash investing and financing activities:       5         Purchases of equipment included in accrued expenses       \$ 7,613	12	1,303,48		
sh and restricted cash and cash equivalents, end of year       \$ 4,601,140         pplemental disclosure of cash flow information:       \$ 161,013         Cash paid for interest       \$ 161,013         pplemental disclosures of noncash investing and financing activities:       \$ 7,613         Purchases of equipment included in accrued expenses       \$ 7,613	54	(219,04		
pplemental disclosure of cash flow information:       \$         Cash paid for interest       \$         pplemental disclosures of noncash investing and financing activities:       \$         Purchases of equipment included in accrued expenses       \$         7,612	86	475,07		
pplemental disclosure of cash flow information:       Image: cash paid for interest         Cash paid for interest       \$ 161,012         pplemental disclosures of noncash investing and financing activities:       Image: cash paid for interest         Purchases of equipment included in accrued expenses       \$ 7,612	40 \$	256,03		
Cash paid for interest\$ 161,012pplemental disclosures of noncash investing and financing activities:\$ 7,612Purchases of equipment included in accrued expenses\$ 7,612	_			
pplemental disclosures of noncash investing and financing activities:         Purchases of equipment included in accrued expenses       \$ 7,612	13 \$	_		
Purchases of equipment included in accrued expenses \$ 7,613				
	13 \$	_		
Fair value of embedded derivatives upon issuance of convertible debt 5,120,900		_		

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.

# QT IMAGING HOLDINGS, INC. Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited)

Fair value of common stock issued with convertible debt	2,312,617	_
Transfer of equipment to inventory	289,214	
Extinguishment of accrued expenses in exchange for common stock	3,760,000	_
Debt discount included in accrued expenses	40,740	
Conversion of long-term debt into common stock	3,433,388	
Deemed dividend	5,185,502	

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.

# 1. The Company and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

#### Nature of Operations

QT Imaging Holdings, Inc. (the "Company"), formerly known as GigCapital5, Inc. ("GigCapital5"), is incorporated in Delaware with headquarters in Novato, California. The Company is a medical device company engaged in research, development, and commercialization of innovative body imaging systems using low frequency sound waves. The Company strives to improve global health outcomes. Its strategy is predicated upon the fact that medical imaging is critical to the detection, diagnosis, and treatment of disease and that it should be safe, affordable, accessible, and centered on the patient's experience. The Company's initial product is a breast imaging system.

On March 4, 2024 (the "Closing Date" or "Merger Date"), QT Imaging, Inc. ("QT Imaging"), GigCapital5, and QTI Merger Sub, Inc. ("QTI Merger Sub") pursuant to the terms of the Business Combination Agreement (the "Business Combination Agreement") dated December 8, 2022, completed the business combination of QT Imaging and GigCapital5 which was effected by the merger of QTI Merger Sub with and into QT Imaging, with QT Imaging surviving the Merger as a wholly owned subsidiary of GigCapital5 (the "Merger," and, together with the other transaction contemplated by the Business Combination Agreement, the "Business Combination"). Upon completion of the merger on March 4, 2024, GigCapital5 changed its name to QT Imaging Holdings, Inc. and effectively assumed all of QT Imaging's material operations. Refer to Note 2 - Business Combination for more information regarding the Merger.

# **Basis of Presentation**

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") applicable to interim financial statements. Accordingly, certain information related to significant accounting policies and footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP") have been condensed or omitted. These condensed consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements of QT Imaging for the year ended December 31, 2023 and the related notes which provide a more complete discussion of the Company's accounting policies and certain other information. The December 31, 2023 condensed consolidated balance sheet was derived from QT Imaging's audited consolidated financial statements.

These unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the same basis as the annual consolidated financial statements and, in the opinion management, reflect all adjustments, which include only normal recurring adjustments, necessary to present fairly the Company's condensed consolidated results for the periods presented. The condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the year ending December 31, 2024 or for any other future annual or interim period.

The share and per share amounts, prior to the Merger, have been retrospectively restated as shares reflecting conversion at the exchange ratio of approximately 0.3427 established in the Business Combination Agreement.

# **Principles of Consolidation**

The condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, QT Imaging and QT Ultrasound Labs, Inc. ("QT Labs"). All intercompany balances and transactions are eliminated in consolidation.

# Liquidity

The Company has incurred net operating losses and negative cash flows from operations since its inception and had an accumulated deficit of \$28,503,111 as of June 30, 2024. During the six months ended June 30, 2024, the Company incurred a net loss of \$5,547,464 and used \$6,955,081 of cash in operating activities, which includes repayment of net liabilities assumed from the business combination. The Company expects to continue to incur losses, and its ability to achieve and sustain profitability will depend on the achievement of sufficient revenues to

support the Company's cost structure. The Company may never achieve profitability and, unless and until it does, the Company will need to continue to raise additional capital.

In connection with the Business Combination, the Company entered into various agreements to obtain financing through the issuance of debt and through stock subscription agreements. On March 4, 2024, the Company received the Pre-Paid Advance, net of issuance costs, of \$9,025,000 from Yorkville pursuant to the Standby Equity Purchase Agreement, \$500,000 of cash proceeds from an investor related to a stock subscription agreement, and \$1,500,000 in cash proceeds through a note payable from Funicular Funds, LP. See Note 8. Long-Term Debt. The Standby Equity Purchase Agreement provides the Company with access to an additional \$40 million of potential capital through the issuance of common stock to Yorkville. During the time the Company has a balance under the Pre-Paid Advance, additional advances can be received with written consent of Yorkville or upon a trigger event, which occurs when the daily volume-weighted average price is less than \$2.00 per share for five consecutive trading days. Management believes that the additional cash received and financing arrangements at the closing of the Business Combination will be sufficient to fund the Company's current operating plan for at least the next 12 months.

The Company's future capital requirements will depend on many factors, including the Company's growth rate, the timing and extent of its spending to support research and development activities, purchasing inventory to meet its growth plan, and the timing and cost to enhance commercialized existing products. In the event that additional financing is required from outside sources, the Company may not be able to raise it on terms acceptable to the Company, or at all. Any additional debt financing obtained by the Company in the future could also involve restrictive covenants relating to the Company's capital-raising activities and other financial and operational matters, which may make it more difficult for the Company to obtain additional capital and to pursue business opportunities, including potential acquisitions. Additionally, if the Company raises additional funds through further issuances of equity, convertible debt securities or other securities convertible into equity, its existing stockholders could suffer significant dilution in their percentage ownership of the Company, and any new equity securities the Company issues could have rights, preferences and privileges senior to those of holders of the Company's common stock. If the Company is unable to obtain adequate financing or financing on terms satisfactory to the Company when the Company requires it, the Company's ability to continue to grow or support its business and to respond to business challenges could be significantly limited.

# Reclassification

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year condensed consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss to conform to the current year presentation. The reclassification had no impact on the previously reported condensed consolidated balance sheet, statement of stockholders' deficit or cash flows.

# Use of Estimates

The preparation of condensed consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses and the related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. The Company bases its estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that it believes to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. In addition, any change in these estimates or their related assumptions could have an adverse effect on the Company's operating results.

# Business Risk and Concentration of Credit Risk and Supply Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash and accounts receivable. The majority of the Company's cash is invested in U.S. dollar deposits with a reputable bank in the United States. Management believes that minimal credit risk exists with respect to the financial institution that holds the Company's cash. At times, such cash may be in excess of insured limits established by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers and generally does not require collateral for accounts receivable. Payment terms range from cash in advance to 30 days from delivery of products or services but may fluctuate depending on the terms of each specific contract.

Significant customers represent 10% or more of the Company's total revenue or accounts receivable, net balance for the period ended as of each reporting date. For each significant customer, revenue as a percentage of total revenue and accounts receivable as a percentage of total accounts receivable are as follows:

			Revenue					
	Accounts	Receivable	Three Months Ended June 30,		Six Mont June			
	June 30, 2024	December 31, 2023	2024	2023	2024	2023		
Customers:								
Customer A	38 %	*	75 %	*	56 %	*		
Customer B	*	*	*	*	30 %	*		
Customer C	61 %	*	24 %	*	13 %	*		
Customer D, related party	*	*	*	57 %	*	42 %		
Customer E	*	*	*	43 %	*	13 %		
Customer F	*	*	*	*	*	45 %		
Customer G	*	100 %	*	*	*	*		
	99 %	100 %	99 %	100 %	99 %	100 %		

\*Total less than 10% for the period.

There are inherent risks whenever a large percentage of total revenue is concentrated in a limited number of customers. Should a significant customer which is a party to a contract with the Company under which the Company derives revenue terminate or fail to renew its contracts with the Company, in whole or in part, for any reason, or experience significant financial or operating difficulties, it could have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial condition and results of operations. In general, a customer that makes up a significant portion of revenues in one period, may not make up a significant portion in subsequent periods. However, as the Company has entered into a Distribution Agreement with NXC Imaging, Inc. ("NXC") on June 18, 2024, by which the Company appointed NXC as the exclusive reseller to market, advertise, and resell certain equipment in the U.S. and U.S. territories, the Company expects that NXC will make up a significant portion of revenues in each period in which such Distribution Agreement is in effect. Customer A in the concentration table above is NXC, which resold the Company's scanner to three clinics during the three months ended June 30, 2024 and four clinics during the six months ended June 30, 2024.

Certain components and services used to manufacture and develop the Company's products are presently available from only one or a limited number of suppliers or vendors. The Company's QT Breast Scanner has more than six hundred components, of which less than five components have such dependencies on limited suppliers or vendors. The loss of any of these suppliers or vendors would potentially require a significant level of hardware and/or software development efforts to incorporate the products or services into the Company's product.

# Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all short-term investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. The Company had restricted cash equivalents of \$20,000 as of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023.

# **Restricted Cash**

Restricted cash is comprised of cash held in an account subject to a collateral agreement to be used for the Company's corporate credit card program.

# Accounts Receivable, Net

Accounts receivable are carried at the amount due. Accounts receivable are written off when management deems all realistic efforts to collect the amount outstanding have been exhausted. A provision for credit losses is estimated by management based on evaluations of its historical bad debt and current collection experience. As of June 30, 2024

and December 31, 2023, an allowance for credit losses was not required. Write offs of accounts receivable were not significant during the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023.

#### Inventory

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined using the weighted-average cost method. The Company periodically reviews the value of items in inventory and provides write-offs of inventory that is obsolete. Appropriate consideration is given to obsolescence, excessive levels, deterioration, and other factors in evaluating net realizable value. Once inventory has been written down below cost, it is not subsequently written up.

# Property and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment, net are recorded at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Expenditures for major additions and improvements are capitalized and minor replacements, maintenance, and repairs are charged to current operations as incurred. When property and equipment are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is included in the results of operations for the respective period. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives of the related assets using the straight-line method. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lesser of the term of the related lease or the estimated useful lives of the assets.

#### Leases

The Company primarily enters into leases for office space that are classified as operating leases. The Company determines if an arrangement is or contains a lease at inception. The Company accounts for leases by recording right-of-use ("ROU") assets and lease liabilities on the condensed consolidated balance sheets in the captions operating lease right-of-use assets, net and operating lease liabilities, respectively. The lease term includes the non-cancelable period of the lease plus any additional periods covered by an option to extend that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise. The Company's leases do not include substantial variable payments based on index or rates. The Company's lease agreements do not contain any significant residual value guarantees or material restrictive covenants.

The Company's leases do not provide a readily determinable implicit discount rate. The Company's incremental borrowing rate is estimated to approximate the interest rate on a collateralized basis with similar terms and payments, and in similar economic environments. Operating lease ROU assets and liabilities are recognized at commencement date based on the present value of lease payments over the lease term. The lease payments related to the next 12 months are included in operating lease liabilities, current on the condensed consolidated balance sheets. The Company recognizes a single lease cost on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, and the Company classifies all cash payments within operating activities in the condensed consolidated statements of cash flows.

The Company did not have any finance leases as of June 30, 2024 or December 31, 2023.

### Intangible Assets, Net

The Company's intangible assets are comprised of patents with a useful life of 12 years. Patents are amortized on a straight-line basis over their useful life.

#### Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. If circumstances require a long-lived asset be tested for possible impairment, the Company first compares undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by an asset to the carrying value of an asset. If the carrying value of the long-lived asset is not recoverable on an undiscounted cash flow basis, impairment is recognized to the extent that the carrying value exceeds its fair value. Fair value is determined through various valuation techniques including discounted cash flow models, quoted market values, and third-party independent appraisals, as considered necessary. Management has reviewed the Company's long-lived assets and recorded no impairment charge for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023.

#### Fair Value Measurements

The Company applies the requirements of the fair value measurements framework, which establishes a hierarchy for measuring fair value and requires enhanced disclosures about fair value measurements. The fair value measurement guidance clarifies that fair value is an exit price, representing the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement guidance also requires disclosure about how fair value is determined for assets and liabilities and establishes a hierarchy in which these assets and liabilities must be grouped based on significant levels of inputs as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Quoted prices in active markets for similar assets and liabilities and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs in which there is little or no market data, which requires the reporting entity to develop its own assumptions.

The determination of where assets and liabilities fall within this hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The Company's financial assets measured on a recurring basis included certificates of deposit totaling \$20,000 as of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023 and were classified as Level 2 financial assets. See Note 3 for discussion on financial liabilities measured at fair value.

#### **Debt and Debt Issuance Costs**

The Company evaluates its financial instruments to determine if they are freestanding financial instruments. The Company also evaluates its convertible debt for embedded derivatives. Embedded provisions (like conversion options) are assessed to determine if they qualify as embedded derivatives that require separate accounting.

Debt issuance costs are recorded as a reduction to the carrying amount of the debt and are amortized to interest expense using the effective interest method. Debt is classified as short-term or long-term based on the term of the note.

# **Revenue Recognition**

Revenue is recognized when a customer obtains control of promised goods or services. The amount of revenue recognized reflects the consideration the Company expects to be entitled to receive in exchange for these goods or services.

The Company determines revenue recognition through the following steps:

1) Identification of the contract, or contracts, with a customer

The Company considers the terms and conditions of the contract in identifying the contracts. The Company determines a contract with a customer to exist when the contract is approved, each party's rights regarding the goods or services to be transferred can be identified, the payment terms for the goods or services can be identified, it has been determined the customer has the ability and intent to pay, and the contract has commercial substance. At contract inception, the Company will evaluate whether two or more contracts should be combined and accounted for as a single contract and whether the combined or single contract includes more than one performance obligation. The Company applies judgment in determining the customer's ability and intent to pay, which is based on a variety of factors, including the customer's historical payment experience or, in the case of a new customer, credit and financial information pertaining to the customer.

2) Identification of the performance obligations in the contract

Performance obligations promised in a contract are identified based on the goods or services that will be transferred to the customer that are both capable of being distinct, whereby the customer can benefit from the goods or services either on its own or together with other resources that are readily available from third parties or from the Company, and are distinct in the context of the contract, whereby the transfer of the goods or services is separately identifiable from other promises in the contract. The Company's performance obligations consist of (i) product sales, (ii) maintenance contracts and (iii) other services including training.

3) Determination of the transaction price

The transaction price is determined based on the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to the customer. Variable consideration is included in the transaction price if, in the Company's judgment, it is probable that a significant future reversal of cumulative revenue under the contract will not occur. The Company's contracts do not contain a significant financing component.

4) Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

If the contract contains a single performance obligation, the entire transaction price is allocated to the single performance obligation. Contracts that contain multiple performance obligations require an allocation of the transaction price to each performance obligation based on a relative standalone selling price.

5) Recognition of revenue when, or as a performance obligation is satisfied

For product sales and services, revenue is recognized at the time the related performance obligation is satisfied by transferring the control of the promised goods or services to a customer, in an amount that reflects the consideration that the Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods or services. Training and maintenance services are generally recognized upon invoicing in amounts that correspond directly with the value to the customer of the performance completed to date which primarily includes professional service arrangements entered on a time and materials basis.

All of the revenue recognized by the Company during the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 was recognized at a point in time.

Revenue recognized during the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 is disaggregated as follows:

	Three Months Ended June 30,			Six Months Ended June 30,				
		2024		2023		2024		2023
Product	\$	1,658,681	\$	3,183	\$	2,964,801	\$	6,247
Service		55,354				111,397		4,500
	\$	1,714,035	\$	3,183	\$	3,076,198	\$	10,747

Revenue recognized by geography during the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 is as follows:

	Three Months Ended June 30,			Six Months Ended June 30,			
	 2024		2023		2024		2023
United States	\$ 1,700,130	\$	3,183	\$	3,058,325	\$	10,747
International	13,905		—		17,873		—
	\$ 1,714,035	\$	3,183	\$	3,076,198	\$	10,747

The Company had no contract assets as of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023. The Company had contract liabilities of \$31,746 as of June 30, 2024, which are expected to be fully recognized as revenue in 2024. The Company had contract liabilities of \$347,619 as of December 31, 2023. Revenue recognized during the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 that was previously included in contract liabilities as of December 31, 2023 was \$11,905 and \$15,873, respectively, while a \$300,000 customer deposit previously deferred was refunded due to an order cancellation during the three and six months ended June 30, 2024.

# Shipping and Handling Costs

Shipping and handling activities are typically performed before the customer obtains control of the goods, and the related costs are therefore expensed as incurred. Shipping and handling costs are included in cost of revenue in the accompanying condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss. Shipping and handling costs incurred for inventory purchases are expensed in cost of revenue when sold.

# **Product Warranty**

The Company's products sold to customers are generally subject to warranties up to twelve months, which provides for the repair or replacement of products, at the Company's option, that fail to perform with stated specifications. The

Company estimates future warranty obligations related to those products. To date, product warranty claims have not been significant.

# **Research and Development Costs**

Research and development costs incurred by the Company include salaries, purchased services, operating materials and supplies, depreciation, and amortization, and are expensed as incurred. These costs amounted to \$925,082 and \$349,657 for the three months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, and \$1,567,628 and \$771,544 for the six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

#### Advertising

Advertising and promotion costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expenses were not significant for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023.

#### **Grant Income**

Periodically, the Company is awarded grants on a cost reimbursement basis. Costs are expensed when incurred and reimbursable on a monthly or quarterly basis with the offset booked as a contra-expense to the applicable functional area in the condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss.

#### Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the differences between financial reporting and the tax basis of assets and liabilities and are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse. Deferred tax assets may be reduced by a valuation allowance if it is more-likely-than-not that some or all of the deferred tax asset will not be realized. The Company annually evaluates the realizability of deferred tax assets by assessing the valuation allowance and by adjusting the amount of such allowance, if necessary. The factors used to assess the likelihood of realization include the Company's forecast of future taxable income and available tax planning strategies that could be implemented to realize the net deferred tax assets.

The Company recognizes the financial statement benefit of a tax position only after determining that the relevant tax authority would more-likelythan-not sustain the position following an audit. For tax positions meeting the more-likely-than-not threshold, the amount recognized in the condensed consolidated financial statements is the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement with the relevant tax authority. In accordance with this accounting policy, the Company recognizes accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as a component of income tax expense. There were no accrued interest and penalties during the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023.

#### Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation cost is measured at the grant date based on the fair market value of the award. Stock-based compensation is recognized as expense on a ratable basis over the requisite service period of the award.

The Company values stock options using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. This model requires the use of highly subjective and complex assumptions which determine the fair value of stock-based awards, including the option's expected term, stock price volatility and risk-free interest rates. Forfeitures are recorded as they occur.

#### **Comprehensive Loss**

Comprehensive loss is defined as the change in the equity of a business enterprise during a period from transactions and other events and circumstances from non-owner sources. Comprehensive loss was equal to net loss for three and six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023.

#### Net Loss per Share

Basic net loss per share is calculated by dividing the net loss attributable to common stockholders by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period, without consideration for potentially dilutive

securities. Diluted net loss per share is computed by dividing the net loss attributable to common stockholders by the weighted-average number of common shares and potentially dilutive common share equivalents outstanding for the period determined using the treasury-stock and if-converted methods. For the purposes of the diluted net loss per share calculation, common stock equivalents are considered to be potentially dilutive securities.

Reconciliation of net loss per share for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 is as follows:

	Three Months Ended June 30,			Six Months Ended June 30,			
	 2024		2023		2024		2023
Net loss attributable to QT Imaging Holdings, Inc.	\$ (1,248,874)	\$	(1,330,014)	\$	(5,547,464)	\$	(3,212,961)
Deemed dividend related to the modification of equity classified warrants	(5,185,502)		_		(5,185,502)		_
Net loss attributable to common stockholders	\$ (6,434,376)	\$	(1,330,014)	\$	(10,732,966)	\$	(3,212,961)
Weighted-average number of common shares used in computing net loss per common share (1)	 21,440,447		9,540,533		17,333,000		9,528,880
Net loss per share - basic and diluted (1)	\$ (0.30)	\$	(0.14)	\$	(0.62)	\$	(0.34)

The following securities were excluded from the calculation of net loss per share because the inclusion would be anti-dilutive as of June 30, 2024 and 2023:

	June 30, 2024	June 30, 2023
Common stock warrants (1)	23,889,364	401,389
Potential shares from Pre-Paid Advance	11,626,337	—
Merger consideration earnout shares	9,000,000	
Potential shares from Cable Car Loan	750,000	—
Potential shares from convertible notes (1)	247,250	251,181
Options outstanding (1)	—	1,350,432
	45,512,951	2,003,002

(1) Amounts as of December 31, 2023 and before that date differ from those in prior year consolidated financial statements as they were retrospectively adjusted as a result of the accounting or the Business Combination (as defined in the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements).

# Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair value of the Company's financial instruments, including cash equivalents, accounts receivable, prepaid expenses and other current assets, accounts payable, and accrued expenses and other current liabilities approximate their fair values because of the relatively short maturity of these instruments. The carrying value of the Company's borrowings approximates fair value based on current rates offered to the Company for instruments with similar terms.

#### **Recent Accounting Pronouncements Adopted**

In August 2020, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2020-06, Debt—Debt with Conversion and Other Options (Subtopic 470-20) and Derivatives and Hedging—Contracts in Entity's Own Equity (Subtopic 815-40): Accounting for Convertible Instruments and Contracts in an Entity's Own Equity. ASU 2020-06 reduces the number of accounting models for convertible instruments and allows more contracts to qualify for equity classification. The Company adopted this guidance effective January 1, 2024, and there was material impact on the Company's condensed consolidated financial statements upon adoption.

# **Recent Accounting Pronouncements**

In November 2023, the FASB issued ASU No. 2023-07, Segment Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures, which requires disclosure of incremental segment information on an annual and interim basis. This ASU is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023, and interim periods within

fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024, and requires retrospective application to all prior periods presented in the financial statements. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the new standard on the condensed consolidated financial statements.

In June 2024, the FASB issued ASU 2023-09, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures. This ASU is intended to improve the transparency of income tax disclosures by requiring (1) consistent categories and greater disaggregation of information in the rate reconciliation and (2) income taxes paid disaggregated by jurisdiction. It also includes certain other amendments to improve the effectiveness of income tax disclosures. The ASU's amendments are effective for public business entities for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2024. Entities are permitted to early adopt the standard for annual financial statements that have not yet been issued or made available for issuance. Adoption is either prospectively or retrospectively, the Company will adopt this ASU on a prospective basis. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the new standard on the condensed consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

#### 2. Business Combination

As described in Note 1, the Merger with GigCapital5 was consummated on March 4, 2024. On the Merger Date, QT Imaging, GigCapital5, and QT Merger Sub, consummated the closing of the transactions contemplated by the Business Combination Agreement, following the approval at an annual stockholder meeting of the stockholders of GigCapital5 held on February 20, 2024 (the "Stockholder Meeting").

The Business Combination was accounted for as a reverse recapitalization. Under this method of accounting, GigCapital5 was treated as the acquired company for financial reporting purposes. Accordingly, for accounting purposes, the Business Combination was treated as the equivalent of QT Imaging issuing shares of the net assets of GigCapital5, accompanied by a recapitalization. The shares and net loss per common share prior to the Merger have been retroactively restated as shares reflecting the exchange ratio established in the Merger (approximately 0.3427 shares of the Company's common stock for each share of QT Imaging common stock). The net liabilities of GigCapital5 have been recognized at carrying value, with no goodwill or other intangible assets recorded.

QT Imaging has been determined to be the accounting acquirer based on evaluation of the following facts and circumstances:

- QT Imaging's stockholders have a majority of the voting power of the Company;
- The majority of QT Imaging's board of directors continued to serve as directors of the Company;
- The majority of QT Imaging's management continued to serve as management of the Company;
- QT Imaging comprises the ongoing operations of the Company; and
- QT Imaging is the larger entity based on historical business activity and the larger employee base.

The following summarizes the elements of the Merger to the condensed consolidated statements of stockholders' deficit and cash flows, including the transaction funding, sources, and uses of cash:

	Recapitalization
Cash in GigCapital5 Trust Account, net of redemptions	\$ 13,952,525
Plus: cash in GigCapital5 operating bank account	4,829
Less: Payments made pursuant to non-redemption agreements	(10,791,550)
Less: GigCapital5 transaction costs paid from Trust	(1,073,667)
Less: Repayment of GigCapital5 related party notes	 (853,607)
Net cash proceeds from GigCapital5	1,238,530
Assumed net liabilities from GigCapital5, excluding net cash proceeds	(10,507,695)
Net impact of the Merger on the condensed consolidated statement of stockholders' deficit	\$ (9,269,165)

# Merger Related Activities

On November 15, 2023, GigCapital5, QT Imaging and YA II PN, LTD, a Cayman Islands exempt limited partnership managed by Yorkville Advisors Global, LP ("Yorkville") entered into the Standby Equity Purchase Agreement (the "SEPA"). Upon the closing of the Merger, the Company has the right, provided there is no balance outstanding under the Yorkville Note (as defined below) or, if there is a balance outstanding under a Yorkville Note, with Yorkville's

prior written consent, or upon the occurrence of certain trigger events, to issue and sell to Yorkville, and Yorkville shall purchase from the Company, up to \$10,000,000 in aggregate gross purchase price (the "Commitment Amount") of newly issued shares of the common stock (each such sale, an "Advance") by delivering written notice to Yorkville (each, an "Advance Notice" and the date on which the Company is deemed to have delivered an Advance Notice, the "Advance Notice Date"). As consideration for a payment of \$10,000,000 ("Pre-Paid Advance") received on March 4, 2024, the Company issued Yorkville a promissory note, which was issued with a 6% original issue discount. The Yorkville Note for the Pre-Paid Advance is due 15 months from the date of issuance, and interest accrues on the outstanding balance of the Yorkville Note at an annual rate equal to 6%, subject to an increase to 18% upon an event of default. The Yorkville Note is convertible by Yorkville into shares of the Company's common stock. On March 4, 2024, immediately prior to, and substantially concurrently with, the closing of the Business Combination, QT Imaging issued to Yorkville that number of shares of the Company which converted in the aggregate into 1,000,000 shares of the Company's common stock upon the completion of the Merger. See Note 8.

In February 2024, GigCapital5 and QT Imaging entered into a Note Purchase Agreement ("Cable Car Loan") with Funicular Funds, LP ("Cable Car"), pursuant to which Cable Car agreed to advance \$1,500,000 at the closing of the Business Combination, as was evidenced by a promissory note that may be convertible in certain circumstances into shares of the Company's common stock at a conversion price of \$2.00 per share (the "Loan"), dated March 4, 2024, by and between QT Imaging and Cable Car. The Loan does not bear interest, and is due and payable 13 months after issuance, unless the time for payment is accelerated as a result of an event of default. On March 4, 2024, as full compensation to Cable Car for the Loan to QT Imaging in lieu of any simple or in-kind interest on the Loan, QT Imaging issued to Cable Car that number of shares of the Company which at the completion of the Business Combination would be converted in accordance with the terms of the Business Combination Agreement into 180,000 shares of the Company's common stock. See Note 8.

In February 2024, GigCapital5 and QT Imaging (together the "parties") entered into a subscription agreement with William Blair & Co., L.L.C. ("William Blair") for the purchase of shares of common stock of QT Imaging. Pursuant to the subscription agreement, QT Imaging issued to William Blair in satisfaction of certain fees owed to William Blair for its services to the parties, that number of shares of QT Imaging which at the completion of the Business Combination were converted in accordance with the terms of the Business Combination Agreement into 740,000 shares of the Company's common stock. The issuance of these shares settled \$2,410,000 of net assumed liabilities from the business combination with an additional transaction cost expense of \$202,200 recorded as selling, general and administrative expense within the condensed consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss during the six months ended June 30, 2024. No transaction expense related to this agreement was recorded during the three months ended June 30, 2024.

In February 2024, the parties agreed to amend one of the non-redemption agreements that were entered into in September 2023 ("September 2023 Non-Redemption Agreements"), pursuant to which, and in addition to the Company's common stock issuable Mizuho Securities USA, LLC ("Mizuho") under the September 2023 Non-Redemption Agreement, Mizuho received from QT Imaging, in exchange for \$250,000 of services rendered by Mizuho, that number of QT Imaging's common stock that converted in accordance with the terms of the Business Combination Agreement into 100,000 shares of the Company's common stock. The issuance of these shares settled \$250,000 of net assumed liabilities from the business combination with an additional transaction expense of \$103,000 recorded as selling, general and administrative expense within the condensed consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss during the six months ended June 30, 2024. No transaction expense related to this agreement was recorded during the three months ended June 30, 2024.

In February 2024, QT Imaging and GigCapital5 entered into two additional subscription agreements with each of Donnelley Financial Solutions, LLC ("DFIN") and IB Capital LLC ("iBankers"), dated as of February 23, 2024 and February 22, 2024, respectively (together, the "Subscription Agreements"), for the purchase of shares of common stock of QT Imaging. Pursuant to the Subscription Agreements, QT Imaging issued to each of DFIN and iBankers in satisfaction of \$500,000 and \$600,000 of fees owed to DFIN and iBankers, respectively, for their services, that number of shares of QT Imaging which at the completion of the Business Combination were converted in accordance with the terms of the Business Combination Agreement into 200,000 and 240,000 respective shares of the Company's common stock. The issuance of these shares settled \$1,100,000 of net assumed liabilities from the business combination with an additional transaction expense of \$453,200 recorded as selling, general and administrative expense within the condensed consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss during the six months ended June 30, 2024. No transaction expense related to this agreement was recorded during the three months ended June 30, 2024.

In February 2024, QT Imaging and LionBay Ventures ("LionBay") entered into a Settlement and Termination Agreement ("Termination Agreement"). Pursuant to the terms of the Termination Agreement, QT Imaging terminated its Service Agreement with LionBay dated May 18, 2021 and the First Amendment of the Service Agreement dated September 9, 2021 (collectively as "Service Agreement"). In exchange for the termination of the Service Agreement and the termination of options to purchase 17,000 shares of common stock with a strike price of \$8.50 per option that were issued as part of the Service Agreement, QT Imaging agreed to issue that number of shares that converted into 10,000 shares of the Company's common stock. The issuance of these shares resulted in an additional transaction expense of \$35,300 recorded as selling, general and administrative expense within the condensed consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss during the six months ended June 30, 2024. No transaction expense related to this agreement was recorded during the three months ended June 30, 2024.

In February 2024, QT Imaging received \$500,000 in exchange for that number of shares that converted into 200,000 shares of the Company's common stock in accordance with the terms of the subscription agreement and Business Combination Agreement. The issuance of these shares resulted in an additional transaction expense of \$206,000 recorded as selling, general and administrative expense within the condensed consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss during the six months ended June 30, 2024. No transaction expense related to this agreement was recorded during the three months ended June 30, 2024.

Pursuant to an amendment dated December 13, 2023, between QT Imaging and Exit Strategy Partners, LLC ("Advisor"), the Company agreed to pay for Advisor's services in exchange for that number of shares that converted into 250,000 shares of the Company's common stock and a total cash amount of \$225,000, of which \$125,000 was paid on the closing of the Business Combination on March 4, 2024 and the remaining \$100,000 is due on the first anniversary of the closing of the Business Combination, which is recorded in accrued expenses and other current liabilities within the condensed consolidated balance sheet as of June 30, 2024. The total cash consideration and issuance of shares related to this amendment resulted in a transaction expense of \$1,107,500 recorded as selling, general and administrative expense within the condensed consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss during the six months ended June 30, 2024. No transaction expense related to this agreement was recorded during the three months ended June 30, 2024.

On March 4, 2024, as consideration for the September 2023 Non-Redemption with certain GigCapital5 stockholders ("Non-Redeeming Stockholders"), QT Imaging issued that number of shares that converted into 427,477 shares of the Company's common stock to the Non-Redeeming Stockholders. The issuance of these shares resulted in a transaction expense of \$1,508,994 recorded as selling, general and administrative expense within the condensed consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss during the six months ended June 30, 2024. No transaction expense related to this agreement was recorded during the three months ended June 30, 2024.

On March 4, 2024, the Company issued to subscribers to the Stock Subscription Agreements entered into in November 2023 equal to that number of shares that resulted in such parties as stockholders of QT Imaging receiving pursuant to the Business Combination Agreement 150,000 shares of the Company's common stock. The issuance of these shares resulted in a transaction expense of \$529,500 recorded as selling, general and administrative expense within the condensed consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss during the six months ended June 30, 2024. No transaction expense related to this agreement was recorded during the three months ended June 30, 2024.

# Merger Earnout Consideration Shares

Pursuant to the Second Amendment to Business Combination Agreement dated September 21, 2023, the Company is obliged to issue a maximum of 9,000,000 shares of Company's common stock (the "Merger Consideration Earnout Shares") if certain triggering events and conditions are achieved during 2024, 2025, and 2026.

# 2024 Earnout Shares

Promptly following the date on which Company files its Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q with respect to its fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2024 with the SEC, an aggregate of 2,500,000 Merger Consideration Earnout Shares (the "2024 Earnout Shares") will be issued to QT Imaging's former stockholders if, and only if, on or prior to such filing date, the Company has obtained a formal U.S. Food and Drug Administration ("FDA") clearance for breast cancer screening with respect to its breast scanning systems, which remains in full force and effect as of such filing date; provided, that the 2024 Earnout Shares shall increase by 500,000 (to an aggregate of 3,000,000) Merger Consideration Earnout Shares if, in addition, during the fifteen months ended September 30, 2024, the Company

either (A) makes at least eight bona fide placements of its breast scanning systems globally or (B) has revenue of at least \$4,400,000 as set forth in the condensed consolidated financial statements included in the periodic reports filed by the Company with the SEC with respect to such fifteen month period.

#### 2025 Earnout Shares

Promptly following the date on which the Company files its Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q with respect to its fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2025 with the SEC, an aggregate of 2,500,000 Merger Consideration Earnout Shares (the "2025 Earnout Shares") will be issued to QT Imaging's former stockholders if, and only if, during the twelve months ended September 30, 2025, (A) the Company achieves annual revenue of at least \$17,100,000 as set forth in the condensed consolidated financial statements included in the periodic reports filed by the Company with the SEC with respect to such twelve month period, and (B) the Company makes at least four placements of its breast scanning systems in the United States; provided, that the 2025 Earnout Shares shall increase by 500,000 (to an aggregate of 3,000,000) Merger Consideration Earnout Shares if at least one of the following milestones is achieved: (x) on or prior to such filing date, the Company has obtained a formal FDA clearance for a new indication for use of its breast scanning systems (other than any indication obtained prior to the beginning of the twelve months ended September 30, 2025), which remains in full force and effect as of such filing date; or (y) the Company achieves clinical-quality patient images with the Company's open angle scanner no later than the filing date of the 2025 Q3 Form 10-Q.

# 2026 Earnout Shares

Promptly following the date on which the Company files its Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q with respect to its fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2026 with the SEC, an aggregate of 2,500,000 Merger Consideration Earnout Shares (the "2026 Earnout Shares") will be issued to QT Imaging's former stockholders if, and only if, during the twelve months ended September 30, 2026, (A) the Company has revenue of at least \$30,000,000 as set forth in the condensed consolidated financial statements included in the periodic reports filed by the Company with the SEC with respect to such twelve month period, or (B) the VWAP of shares of common stock equals or exceeds \$15.00 per share for twenty (20) of any thirty (30) consecutive trading days on the Nasdaq exchange; provided, that the 2026 Earnout Shares shall increase by 500,000 (to an aggregate of 3,000,000) Merger Consideration Earnout Shares if at least one of the following milestones is achieved on or prior to such filing date: (x) the Company has obtained a formal FDA clearance of its open angle scanner, which remains in full force and effect as of such filing date; or (y) the Company receives net positive results in bona fide clinical trials, conducted in accordance with generally accepted industry standards, for its open angle scanner, as reported no later than the filing date of the 2026 Q3 Form 10-Q.

The Company recorded a liability of \$750,000 related to the Merger Earnout Consideration Shares within the condensed consolidated balance sheet as of June 30, 2024. See Note 3.

#### 3. Fair Value Measurements

The fair value of the Company's financial assets and liabilities reflects management's estimate of amounts that the Company would have received in connection with the sale of the assets or paid in connection with the transfer of the liabilities in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. In connection with measuring the fair value of its assets and liabilities, the Company seeks to maximize the use of observable inputs (market data obtained from independent sources) and to minimize the use of unobservable inputs (internal assumptions about how market participants would price assets and liabilities). The following fair value hierarchy is used to classify assets and liabilities based on the observable inputs and unobservable inputs used in order to value the assets and liabilities:

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. An active market for an asset or liability is a market in which transactions for the asset or liability occur with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

Level 2: Observable inputs other than Level 1 inputs. Examples of Level 2 inputs include quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities and quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in markets that are not active.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs which are supported by little or no market activity and which are significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities.

The following table presents information about the Company's assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, and indicates the fair value hierarchy of the valuation inputs the Company utilized to determine such fair value:

Description:	Level	June 30, 2024		mber 31, 2023
Assets:				
Certificate of deposit	2	\$ 20,000	\$	20,000
Liabilities:		 		
Warrant liability	2	\$ 18,588	\$	—
Earnout liability	3	\$ 750,000	\$	
Derivative liability	3	\$ 408,100	\$	_

# Warrant Liability

The Company has determined that the warrants that were a constituent part of (i) the private placement units that were issued in a private placement sale by GigCapital5 prior to the Merger ("Private Placement Warrants") and (ii) the private placement units that were issued upon conversion of working capital notes issued by GigCapital5 prior to the Merger, which conversion occurred concurrent with the Merger ("Working Capital Note Warrants") are subject to treatment as a liability, as the transfer of the warrants to anyone other than the purchasers or their permitted transferees would result in these warrants having substantially the same terms as the warrants included in the public units that were issued by GigCapital5 prior to the Merger ("Public Warrants"). The Company determined that the fair value of each Private Placement Warrant and the Working Capital Note Warrants approximates the fair value of a Public Warrant. Accordingly, the Private Placement Warrants and Working Capital Note Warrants are valued upon observable data and have been classified as Level 2 financial instruments. As of June 30, 2024, a total of 889,364 Private Placement Warrants and Working Capital Note Warrants were outstanding at an approximate fair value of \$0.021 per warrant. See Note 11.

The activity for the fair value of the warrant liability during the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 was as follows:

	Warrant Liability
Beginning balance, January 1, 2024	\$
Net liabilities assumed from GigCapital5	8,894
Change in fair value	23,123
Ending balance, March 31, 2024	32,017
Increase due to warrant modification	200,513
Change in fair value	(213,942)
Ending balance, June 30, 2024	\$ 18,588

The effect of the modification of the Private Placement Warrants and the Working Capital Note Warrants as further described in Note 11 was included within other expense, net in the condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss during the three and six months ended June 30, 2024.

# Earnout Liability

The fair value of the Merger Consideration Earnout shares was calculated using a Monte Carlo simulation. The simulation used as significant inputs the Company's management's current assessment of placements of breast scanning systems in 2024 and 2025, likely expected values for revenues from 2024 through 2026, probabilities for regulatory approvals including FDA clearances, and probabilities of other triggering events related to the open angle scanner. The probabilities of the non-revenue triggers generally range from 0 to 25 percent with the exception of the FDA clearance for a new indication by November 14, 2025, as defined in the Business Combination Agreement, which is at 100 percent. The revenue forecast for the respective measurement periods are generally in line with the revenue triggers as defined in the Business Combination Agreement, as amended. Additional significant inputs into the simulation include the volatility of Company's equity, assets, and revenue that was derived in a manner as would be common for such simulation, and published industry operating profitability metrics. A weighted average cost of capital ("WACC") was estimated based on a venture capital rates of return on debt and equity. This WACC was used as the discount rate applicable to revenue, after applying a delivering factor to convert it from being applicable to earnings before interest and tax ("EBIT") to being applicable to revenue. This EBIT to revenue delivering factor was estimated using published industry operating profit and cost metrics.

The Monte Carlo simulation developed a distribution of projected revenues for 2024 through 2026 using a Geometric Brownian Motion framework based on a standard normal distribution of returns. The simulation also developed a distribution of potential daily common stock prices for 2026 using a Geometric Brownian Motion framework. The resulting fair value is based on the average of the number of shares that will be paid out for each triggering event over a statistically significant number of simulations.

Significant assumptions used in the valuation of the fair value of the earnout liability as of issuance on March 4, 2024 and as of June 30, 2024 were as follows:

	Mar	ch 4, 2024	Ju	ine 30, 2024
Fair value of common stock	\$	3.53	\$	0.74
Volatility of revenue		26.0 %		19.0 %
Discount rate applicable to revenue		7.0 %		7.0 %
Risk-free rate		4.5 %		4.6 %
Risk premium		2.5 %		2.3 %
Cost of debt		15.5 %		15.5 %
Credit risk spread		11.0 %		10.9 %
Equity volatility		130.0 %		100.0 %

The activity for the fair value of the earnout liability for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 was as follows:

	Earn	out Liability
Beginning balance, January 1, 2024	\$	—
Change in fair value		1,060,000
Ending balance, March 31, 2024		1,060,000
Change in fair value		(310,000)
Ending balance, June 30, 2024	\$	750,000

# Derivative Liability

In March 2024, the Company recorded a derivative liability related to the Pre-Paid Advance issued on March 4, 2024 pursuant to the SEPA, dated November 15, 2023, between QT Imaging and Yorkville (See Note 2 and Note 8). The Pre-Paid Advance contained the following derivative features ("Derivatives") as defined in the SEPA that were recognized at fair value:

- Monthly Payment Premium: if, any time after the Issuance Date, and from time to time thereafter, a Trigger Event occurs, then the Company shall make monthly payments of Triggered Principal Amount, Payment Premium and accrued and unpaid interest.
- Monthly Payment Discount: if, any time after the Issuance Date, and from time to time thereafter, a Trigger Event occurs, then the Company shall make monthly payments of Triggered Principal Amount minus the lesser of (x) \$1,500,000 and (y) such amount of fifty percent (50%) of the Investor's net sales proceeds of the Company Shares or fifty percent (50%) of the value of the Company Shares on such date the cash payment is due.
- Variable Price Conversion Right: subject to certain limitations, at any time or times on or after the Issuance Date, the Yorkville shall be entitled to convert any portion of the outstanding and unpaid Conversion Amount into fully paid and nonassessable Common Stock in accordance with Section (3)(b), at the Conversion Price of 95% of the lowest VWAP of the Company's Common Stock during the 5 consecutive Trading Days immediately preceding the Conversion Date or the date the Holder submits an Investor Notice pursuant to and as defined in the SEPA, as applicable, or other date of determination, but not lower than the Floor Price.
- Failure to Timely Convert: if within three (3) Trading Days after the Company's receipt of an email copy of a Conversion Notice the Company shall fail to issue and deliver a certificate to the Yorkville or credit Yorkville's balance account with DTC for the number of shares of Common Stock to which the Holder is entitled upon such

Yorkville's conversion of any Conversion Amount (a "Conversion Failure"), and if on or after such Trading Day the Yorkville purchases (in an open market transaction or otherwise) Common Stock to deliver in satisfaction of a sale by the Yorkville of Common Stock issuable upon such conversion that the Yorkville anticipated receiving from the Company (a "Buy-In"), then the Company shall, within three (3) Business Days after the Yorkville's request and in the Yorkville's discretion, either (i) pay cash to Yorkville in an amount equal to Yorkville's total purchase price (including brokerage commissions and other out of pocket expenses, if any) for the Common Stock so purchased (the "Buy-In Price"), or (ii) promptly honor its obligation to deliver to the Yorkville a certificate or certificates representing such Common Stock and pay cash to the Yorkville in an amount equal to the excess (if any) of the Buy-In Price over the product of (A) such number of shares of Common Stock, times (B) the Closing Price on the Conversion Date.

Corporate Events: in addition to and not in substitution for any other rights hereunder, prior to the consummation of any Fundamental Transaction pursuant to which holders of Common Stock are entitled to receive securities or other assets with respect to or in exchange for shares of Common Stock (a "Corporate Event"), the Company shall make appropriate provision to ensure that the Holder will thereafter have the right to receive upon a conversion of this Note, at the Holder's option, (i) in addition to the Common Stock receivable upon such conversion, such securities or other assets to which the Holder would have been entitled with respect to such Common Stock had such Common Stock been held by the Holder upon the consummation of such Corporate Event (without taking into account any limitations or restrictions on the convertibility of this Note) or (ii) in lieu of the Common Stock otherwise receivable upon such conversion, such securities or other assets received by the holders of Common Stock in connection with the consummation of such Corporate Event in such amounts as the Holder would have been entitled to receive had this Note initially been issued with conversion rights for the form of such consideration (as opposed to Common Stock) at a conversion rate for such consideration commensurate with the Conversion Price. Provision made pursuant to the preceding sentence shall be in a form and substance satisfactory to the Required Holders.

The initial fair value of the above Derivatives was calculated using a Monte Carlo simulation. The simulation used significant inputs, including volatility of Company's equity that was derived based on a comparable peer group of publicly traded companies and the company's stock price on the valuation date.

The total value of the derivatives reflected the combined value of the monthly payment premium, reduction to that premium by the payment discount, and the value of the conversion right. The values of the failure to timely convert and corporate event features were deemed to be de minimis.

Significant assumptions used in the valuation of the fair value of the derivative liability as of issuance on March 4, 2024 and as of June 30, 2024 were as follows:

	March 4, 2024		June 30, 2024
Fair value of common stock	\$	3.53	\$ 0.74
Term in years		1.25	0.92
Volatility		130.0 %	100.0 %
Risk-free rate		4.9 %	5.1 %
Debt discount		30.0 %	30.0 %

The activity for the fair value of the derivative liability during the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 was as follows:

	Derivati Liabilit	
Beginning balance, January 1, 2024	\$	
Fair value at issuance	5,1	20,900
Change in fair value	(2,98	3,100)
Ending balance, March 31, 2024	2,13	37,800
Change in fair value	(1,72	29,700)
Ending balance, June 30, 2024	\$ 40	08,100

# 4. Inventory

Inventory consisted of the following as of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023:

	J	June 30, 2024		ecember 31, 2023
Raw materials	\$	2,497,317	\$	2,529,364
Work in process		818,458		1,627,802
Finished Goods		38,902		261,031
Total	\$	3,354,677	\$	4,418,197

# 5. Property and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment, net consisted of the following as of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023:

	Useful Life	June 30, 2024		cember 31, 2023
Scanners	5 Years	\$ 2,254,547	\$	3,309,957
Computer and lab equipment	3-5 Years	1,384,307		1,359,491
Leasehold improvements	Various	421,266		421,266
Software	3 Years	50,374		40,599
Furniture and fixtures	7 Years	82,336		82,336
		 4,192,830		5,213,649
Less: accumulated depreciation		(4,051,171)		(4,722,729)
		\$ 141,659	\$	490,920

Depreciation expense was \$42,233 and \$69,565 for the three months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Depreciation expense was \$94,636 and \$139,921 for the six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

# 6. Intangible Assets, Net

Intangible assets, net consisted of the following as of June 30, 2024:

	Useful Life	(	Gross Carrying Value	Accumulated Amortization	Net Carrying Value	Useful Life Remaining
Patents	12 Years	\$	2,230,570	\$ 2,230,570	\$ _	0.00 Years

Intangible assets, net consisted of the following as of December 31, 2023:

	Useful Life	(	Gross Carrying Value	Accumulated Amortization	Net Carrying Value	Useful Life Remaining
Patents	12 Years	\$	2,230,570	\$ 2,140,431	\$ 90,139	0.50 Years

Amortization expense was \$43,669 and \$46,470 for each of the three months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023. Amortization expense was \$90,139 and \$92,940 for each of the six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023.

# 7. Balance Sheet Details

Prepaid expenses and other current assets consisted of the following as of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023:

	J	June 30, 2024		ember 31, 2023
Prepaid insurance	\$	659,954	\$	9,808
Other		209,518		205,171
Total	\$	869,472	\$	214,979

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities consisted of the following as of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023:

	June 30, 2024		ecember 31, 2023
Accrued legal	\$ 2,111,258	\$	24,729
Accrued interest	657,602		50,037
Accrued personnel costs	610,271		120,856
Accrued excise taxes	202,341		
Accrued advisory fee	100,000		
Other	510,543		174,029
Total	\$ 4,192,015	\$	369,651

# 8. Long-Term Debt

#### **Paycheck Protection Program Loan**

On February 24, 2021 and May 5, 2020, the Company received loans ("PPP Loans") from US Bank in the amounts of \$1,158,265 ("Loan 2") and \$1,158,266 ("Loan 1"), respectively, to fund payroll, rent and utilities through the Paycheck Protection Program ("PPP"). Original loan terms were revised by the PPP Flexibility Act of 2020. Under the terms of the PPP, up to 100% of the loan and related interest was forgivable if the proceeds were used for covered expenses and certain other requirements related to wage rates were met. For Loan 1, the Company applied for forgiveness on June 7, 2021, and received forgiveness of \$873,151 in principal and \$9,823 in interest from the Small Business Administration ("SBA") on June 14, 2021. For Loan 2, the Company applied for forgiveness on November 9, 2021, and received forgiveness of \$930,246 in principal and \$6,822 in interest on November 15, 2021.

The remaining balance of Loan 1 of \$285,115 is payable in monthly installments of \$6,400, including interest at 1%, beginning August 5, 2021, with the final payment due May 5, 2025. As of June 30, 2024, the total principal outstanding under Loan 1 was \$70,046, all of which was current. As of December 31, 2023, the total principal outstanding under Loan 1 was \$107,979, of which \$76,058 was current and \$31,921 was noncurrent.

The remaining balance of Loan 2 of \$228,019 is payable in monthly installments of \$4,605, including interest at 1%, beginning December 27, 2021, with the final payment due February 27, 2026. As of June 30, 2024, the total principal outstanding under Loan 2 was \$91,284, of which \$54,586 was current and \$36,698 was noncurrent. As of December 31, 2023, the total principal outstanding under Loan 2 was \$118,369, of which \$54,308 was current and \$64,061 was noncurrent.

Interest expense for Loan 1 and Loan 2 for the three months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 was \$468 and \$798, respectively. Interest expense for Loan 1 and Loan 2 for the six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 was \$1,013 and \$1,661, respectively.

The SBA may undertake a review of a loan of any size during the six-year period following forgiveness or repayment of the loan. The review may include the loan forgiveness application, as well as whether the Company received the proper loan amount. The timing and outcome of any SBA review is not known.

# Convertible Notes Payable

In June 2021, the Company entered into a convertible promissory note agreement (the "Note") with USCG for advances of up to \$10,000,000. The Company could have made advances on the Note up to six months after the inception of the Note unless extensions for advances were mutually agreed between both parties. The Note bore interest at 12% per annum on any amounts drawn with maturity date of July 6, 2024. The Note was collateralized by all assets of the Company and was guaranteed by QT Labs. The terms of the Note include non-financial covenants and, as of March 4, 2024 when the Note converted, the Company was in compliance with those covenants. Through December 31, 2023, the Company issued warrants in connection with the note to purchase a total of 5,091 shares of common stock which 3,540 shares are exercisable at a price of \$11.67 per share. The fair value of the warrants, along with financing fees, were recorded as debt issuance costs and presented in the condensed consolidated balance sheets as a deduction from the carrying amount of the Note. On March 4, 2024, these warrants were terminated in accordance with the Business Combination Agreement.

The Note was convertible, at the Company's option, before the Note matured upon the closing of a single transaction or a series of transactions with a minimum of \$15,000,000 of cash proceeds raised in the aggregate. If elected, the

conversion price is 90% of the price per share in the qualified financing. Management assessed whether the embedded features in the Note should have been bifurcated from the debt host and concluded that none of the features required to be accounted for separately from the debt instrument.

In November 2023 and in connection with the Fourth Amendment and issuance of the senior secured convertible promissory note to US Capital as part of the Securities Purchase Agreement as described below (the "US Capital Note"), the outstanding loan balances of the Note of \$2,495,000 with accrued interest of \$635,854 were considered extinguished. In November 2023, the Company recorded \$376,086 as a loss on extinguishment in other expenses in the condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss, and includes a commission paid of \$20,000, remaining unamortized debt issuance costs on the Note of \$32,828 and the fair value of warrants to purchase 16,320 shares of common stock of \$156,505.

As of December 31, 2023, the total Note and US Capital Note balance was \$3,294,659 net of unamortized debt issuance costs of \$36,194, and accrued interest of \$50,037. Interest expense, including amortization of debt issuance costs, for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 was \$0 and \$88,692, respectively. Interest expense, including amortization of debt issuance costs, for the three and six months ended June 30, 2023 was \$85,418 and \$170,015, respectively.

On March 4, 2024, the Note principal and related accrued interest balance of \$3,233,388 and the US Capital Note principal balance of \$200,000 was converted into 359,266 and 100,000 shares of common stock, respectively. Additionally, warrants to purchase 16,320 shares of the Company's common stock were net settled into 5,594 shares of common stock.

# Bridge Loan

In November 2023, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement and raised a private secured convertible bridge financing in the aggregate amount of \$1,000,000 ("Bridge Loan") from five investors ("Bridge Lenders"). Each Bridge Loan of \$200,000 bore no interest but had a cash option value at the date maturity of 120% or \$240,000 of the Bridge Loan at each Bridge Lender's option. The maturity date was the closing date of the Business Combination as defined in Note 1. The Bridge Loan conversion price was at \$2.00 per share on a post-business combination. On March 4, 2024, four of the five Bridge Loan holders elected the cash option and were paid an aggregate of \$960,000 on the Merger Date. Interest expense related to the payment premium was \$0 and \$160,000 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024, respectively.

As of June 30, 2024, there was no amount outstanding for the Bridge Loan. As of December 31, 2023, the outstanding amount of the Bridge Loan, excluding the US Capital Note, was \$774,337, net of unamortized debt issuance costs of \$25,663. Interest expense from the amortization of debt issuance costs for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 was \$0 and \$25,663, respectively.

#### Yorkville Pre-Paid Advance

On March 4, 2024, the Company received the Pre-Paid Advance of \$10,000,000 from Yorkville that will be due 15 months from the date of issuance, and interest shall accrue on the outstanding balance of the Yorkville Note at an annual rate equal to 6%, subject to an increase to 18% upon an event of default as described in the Yorkville Note. The Yorkville Note is convertible by Yorkville into shares of the Company's common stock. As consideration for the Pre-Paid Advance, immediately prior to, and substantially concurrently with, the closing of the Business Combination, QT Imaging issued to Yorkville that number of shares of QT Imaging which converted in the aggregate into 1,000,000 shares of the Company's common stock upon the completion of the Business Combination. In accordance with ASC 470-20, the proceeds of \$10,000,000 were recorded between the promissory note and common stock less debt origination costs of \$975,000, consisting of a \$375,000 commitment fee for the SEPA and an original issue discount of 6% for the Pre-Paid Advance, on a relative fair value basis. Expenses related to a structuring fee was \$0 and \$20,000 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024, respectively, and was included in other expense, net in the condensed consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss. As noted in Note 3, the Pre-Paid Advance contained Derivatives that were bifurcated and recorded a separate instrument. The initial value of the Derivatives of the \$5,120,900 was recorded as a debt discount against the Pre-Paid Advance.

As of June 30, 2024, the outstanding amount of the Yorkville Pre-paid Advance was \$3,030,909 net of the unamortized debt discount of \$6,969,091, and accrued interest of \$193,973. Interest expense, including amortization of debt issuance costs, for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 was \$953,436 and \$1,187,066, respectively.



#### Cable Car Loan

In February 2024, GigCapital5 and QT Imaging entered into the Cable Car Loan with Cable Car, pursuant to which Cable Car agreed to advance \$1,500,000 at the closing of the Business Combination, as was evidenced by the Loan, dated March 4, 2024, by and between QT Imaging and Cable Car. The Loan does not bear interest, and is due and payable 13 months after issuance, unless the time for payment is accelerated as a result of an event of default. As full compensation to Cable Car for the Loan to QT Imaging in lieu of any simple or in-kind interest on the Loan, QT Imaging issued to Cable Car that number of shares of QT Imaging which at the completion of the Business Combination would be converted in accordance with the terms of the Business Combination Agreement into 180,000 shares of the Company's common stock. In accordance with ASC 470-20, the proceeds of \$1,500,000 were recorded between the promissory note and common stock less debt origination costs of \$40,740, consisting of legal fees, on a relative fair value basis.

As of June 30, 2024, the outstanding amount of the Cable Car Loan was \$1,138,668, net of unamortized issuance costs of \$361,332. Interest expense, including amortization of debt issuance costs, for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 was \$98,217 and \$125,739, respectively.

Future principal payments on the long-term debt as of June 30, 2024 are as follows:

Year ending December 31:	
2024 (remaining)	\$ 65,348
2025	11,586,784
2026	9,198
Total payments	 11,661,330
Less: Unamortized debt issuance costs	(7,330,423)
Less: Current maturities of long-term debt	(4,294,209)
Long-term debt	\$ 36,698

#### 9. Leases

The Company leases its operating facilities in Novato, California, under a non-cancelable operating lease through May 31, 2027. There are no options or rights to extend the term of this lease.

The following table reflects the Company's ROU assets and lease liabilities as of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023:

	J	June 30, 2024		ecember 31, 2023
Assets:				
Operating lease ROU assets, net	\$	1,104,784	\$	1,267,121
Liabilities:				
Operating lease liabilities, current	\$	382,964	\$	361,305
Operating lease liabilities		866,761		1,062,633
	\$	1,249,725	\$	1,423,938

The following table presents supplemental cash flow information related to the Company's operating leases for the three and six months ended:

	Three Months Ended June 30,				Six Months Ended June 30,			
	2024		2023		2024		2023	
Operating cash flows from operating leases	\$ 114,722	\$	110,277	\$	228,308	\$	220,555	

As of June 30, 2024, the maturity of operating lease liabilities was as follows:

Year ending December 31:	
2024 (remaining)	\$ 233,987

2025	476,164
2026	490,449
2027	206,864
Total payments	1,407,464
Less: Interest	(157,739)
Present value of obligations	\$ 1,249,725

The operating lease expense for the three months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 was \$113,748 and \$113,535, respectively, of which \$5,532 and \$5,320, respectively, were related to leases with a term of less than 12 months. The operating lease expense for the six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 was \$227,283 and \$226,818, respectively, of which \$10,851 and \$10,387, respectively, were related to leases with a term of less than 12 months.

As of June 30, 2024, the weighted-average remaining lease term was 2.9 years and the weighted-average discount rate was 8%. As of June 30, 2023, the weighted-average remaining lease term was 3.9 years and the weighted-average discount rate was 8%.

#### 10. Contingencies

#### Litigation

The Company is subject to occasional lawsuits, investigations, and claims arising out of the normal conduct of business. As of the date the condensed consolidated financial statements were available to be issued, management is not aware of any pending claims that will have a material impact on the Company's condensed consolidated financial statements.

#### 11. Stockholders' Deficit

#### **Common Stock**

The Company's common stock trades on the Nasdaq Stock Exchange under the symbol "QTI". Pursuant to the terms of the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, the Company is authorized and has available for issuance 500,000,000 shares of common stock. Immediately following the Merger, there were 21,437,216 shares of common stock outstanding with a par value of \$0.0001. The holder of each share of common stock is entitled to one vote.

The Company retroactively adjusted the shares issued and outstanding prior to March 4, 2024 to give effect to the exchange ratio established in the Business Combination Agreement to determine the number of shares of common stock into which they were converted.

Common stock reserved for future issuance as of June 30, 2024 is as follows:

Common stock warrants	23,889,364
Potential shares from Pre-Paid Advance	11,626,337
Merger earnout consideration shares	9,000,000
Options available under the 2024 Incentive Plan	2,358,093
Potential shares from Cable Car Loan	750,000
Potential shares from convertible notes	247,250
	47,871,044

# **Preferred Stock**

The Company is authorized to issue 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock, with a par value of \$0.0001, with such designations, voting and other rights and preferences as may be determined from time to time by the Board of Directors. As of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, there were no shares of preferred stock issued and outstanding. The Board has the authority to issue shares of preferred stock from time to time on terms it may determine, to divide shares of preferred stock into one or more series and to fix the designations, preferences, privileges, and restrictions of preferred stock, including dividend rights, conversion rights, voting rights, terms of redemption, liquidation preference, sinking fund terms, and the number of shares constituting any series or the

designation of any series to the fullest extent permitted by the Delaware General Corporation Law. The issuance of preferred stock could have the effect of decreasing the trading price of common stock, restricting dividends on the capital stock of the Company, diluting the voting power of the common stock, impairing the liquidation rights of the capital stock of the Company, or delaying or preventing a change in control of the Company.

# QT Imaging Private Placement Warrants

In November 2022, the Company initiated an offering to sell to a select group of accredited investors only, on a private placement basis, 342,703 units for a purchase price of \$11.67 per unit (the "Units"), each Unit consisting of one share of common stock and one warrant to purchase one share of common stock (the "QT Imaging Private Placement Warrants") with an exercise price of \$11.67 (the "2022 Offering"). As of December 31, 2023, the Company has issued 167,925 Units for net proceeds of \$1,932,850, which 5,995 and 89,532 Units were issued during the three and six months ended June 30, 2023, respectively, for total net proceeds of \$70,000 and \$1,026,550, respectively. There were no Units issued during the three and six months ended June 30, 2024. On March 4, 2024, all outstanding QT Imaging Private Placement Warrants were deemed out of the money and terminated in accordance with the Business Combination Agreement.

# QT Imaging Warrants for Common Stock

In addition to the warrants sold as part of the Units in the 2022 Offering, the Company also issued warrants to consultants and to placement agents in association with debt issuances and past private offerings. At the option of the warrant holders, the warrants can be fully settled in shares of common stock, or converted via net share settlement, in which the warrant holder will receive shares equal to the number of shares purchasable under the warrants multiplied by the difference between the fair market value of the shares and the exercise price, divided by the fair market value of the shares.

The following table represents the QT Imaging warrant activity as follows for the six months ended June 30, 2024:

	Number of Warrants
Outstanding, January 1, 2024	422,064
Exercised	(16,320)
Terminated pursuant to business combination agreement	(405,744)
Outstanding, June 30, 2024	

The fair value of the QT Imaging warrants issued as part of the 2022 Offering and included in stockholders' deficit in the condensed consolidated balance sheets was \$30,975 and \$462,413 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2023, respectively. The fair value of the remaining warrant granted during the six months ended June 30, 2023 was \$15,317 and was recorded as issuance costs against the proceeds received from the 2022 Offering. There were no QT Imaging warrants issued during the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 or during the three months ended June 30, 2023.

On March 4, 2024 and in accordance with the terms of the Business Combination Agreement, the Company cancelled and terminated all outstanding warrants that were deemed out of the money with an exercise price of or above \$11.67 per warrant, including all warrants sold as part of the Units in the 2022 Offering and warrants that were issued to consultants and placement agents in association with debt issuances and past private offerings.

# Warrants (Public Warrants, Private Placement Warrants and Working Capital Note Warrants)

Warrants will be exercisable at \$11.50 per share, and pursuant to the terms of the warrant agreement governing such warrants (the "Warrant Agreement"), the exercise price and number of warrant shares issuable on exercise of the warrants may be adjusted in certain circumstances including in the event of a stock dividend, extraordinary dividend or recapitalization, reorganization, merger or consolidation of the Company. In addition, if (x) the Company issues additional shares of common stock or equity-linked securities for capital raising purposes in connection with the closing of its initial Business Combination at an issue price or effective issue price of less than \$9.20 per share of common stock (with such issue price or effective issue price to be determined in good faith by the Company's Board of Directors, and in the case of any such issuance to the Company's Founder or its affiliates, without taking into account any Founder Shares held by it prior to such issuance), (y) the aggregate gross proceeds from such issuances represent more than 65% of the total equity proceeds, and interest thereon, available for the funding of the

Company's initial Business Combination on the date of the consummation of its initial Business Combination (net of redemptions), and (z) the volume weighted average trading price of the Company's common stock during the 20 trading-day period starting on the trading day prior to the day on which the Company consummates its initial Business Combination (such price, the "Market Value") is below \$9.20 per share, the exercise price of the warrants will be adjusted (to the nearest cent) to be equal to 115% of the greater of (i) the Market Value or (ii) the price at which the Company issues the additional shares of common stock or equity-linked securities.

Each warrant will become exercisable on the later of 30 days after the completion of the Merger and will expire five years after the completion of the Merger. If the Company is unable to deliver registered shares of common stock to the holder upon exercise of the warrants during the exercise period, there will be no net cash settlement of these warrants and the warrants will expire worthless, unless they may be exercised on a cashless basis in the circumstances described in the Warrant Agreement. Once the warrants become exercisable, the Company may redeem the outstanding warrants in whole and not in part at a price of \$0.01 per warrant upon a minimum of 30 days' prior written notice of redemption, only in the event that the last sale price of the Company's shares of common stock equals or exceeds \$18.00 per share for any 20 trading days within the 30-trading day period ending on the third trading day before the Company sends the notice of redemption to the warrant holders.

Under the terms of the Warrant Agreement, the Company has agreed to use its best efforts to file a new registration statement under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), following the completion of the Merger, for the registration of the shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of the warrants included in the public units issued in the Company's initial public offering (the "Public Units"), the private placement units undertaken by the Company concurrently with its initial public offering (the "Private Placement Units") and the private placement units that were issued upon conversion of working capital notes issued by the Company prior to the Merger, which conversion occurred concurrent with the Merger. The new registration statement was filed on April 1, 2024, and was declared effective by the SEC on May 22, 2024.

As of June 30, 2024, there were 23,889,364 warrants outstanding from those that were initially included as a constituent security of the Public Units and the Private Placement Units (the "PubCo Warrants") with an exercise price of \$11.50 per warrant and expiring on March 4, 2029. On May 13, 2024, the exercise price of PubCo Warrants was reduced from \$11.50 to \$2.30 per warrant and the price per share related to the redemption events described above decreased from \$18.00 per share to \$3.60 per share in accordance with the terms of the Warrant Agreement as discussed above. The modification in exercise price related to the Public Warrants, which are equity classified, was accounted as a deemed dividend, which resulted in an adjustment of \$5,185,502 to accumulated deficit during the three and six months ended June 30, 2024. The effect of the modification in exercise price related to the Private Placement Warrants and Working Capital Note Warrants, which are liability classified, was recorded in other expense, net within the statements of operations and comprehensive loss and amounted to \$200,513 during the three and six months ended June 30, 2024.

# 12. Stock Incentive Plans

#### 2024 Equity Incentive Plan

On February 15, 2024, at the Annual Meeting, the GigCapital5 stockholders considered and approved the 2024 Equity Incentive Plan (the "2024 Incentive Plan") and reserved 2,358,093 shares of common stock for issuance thereunder. The 2024 Incentive Plan became effective immediately upon the Closing of the Business Combination on March 4, 2024. The term of the 2024 Incentive Plan is 10 years. The number of shares of common stock reserved for issuance under the 2024 Incentive Plan will automatically increase on January 1 of each year, beginning on January 1, 2025 and continuing through January 1, 2035, by 5% of the total number of shares of common stock outstanding on December 31 of the preceding calendar year, or a lesser number of shares as may be determined by the board of directors. Under the 2024 Incentive Plan, the Company may issue stock options, stock appreciation rights ("SARs"), restricted stock awards ("RSAs"), restricted stock units ("RSUs"), and performance awards ("PAS"). The term of stock options may not exceed 10 years and is subject to vesting conditions, which is subject to the option holder's continued service to the Company. The exercise price of any stock option award cannot be less than fair market value of the Company's common stock, provided, however, that an incentive stock option granted to an employee who owns more than 10% of the total combined voting power of all classes of stock of the Company or any parent or subsidiary, must have an exercise price of no less than 110% of the fair market value of the Company's common stock and a term that does not exceed five years.

There were no shares issued or outstanding under the 2024 Incentive Plan as of June 30, 2024.

QT Imaging Incentive Plan

In September 2021, the Board of Directors approved and the Company adopted the Plan (the "QT Imaging Plan"). The maximum aggregate number of shares of common stock that the Company may award under the QT Imaging Plan is 7,000,000. The term of the QT Imaging Plan was originally 10 years. The QT Imaging Plan is administered by the compensation committee of the Company's Board of Directors (the "Administrator"). The Company may grant awards to eligible participants which may take the form of stock options (both incentive stock options and non-qualified stock options), stock purchase rights, restricted stock, restricted stock units and performance stock awards. Awards may be granted to employees, directors, and consultants (as defined in the QT Imaging Plan.) The term of any stock option award may not exceed 10 years and may be subject to vesting conditions, as determined by the Administrator. Incentive stock options may only be granted to employees of the Company or any subsidiary that is a "subsidiary corporation" within the meaning of Section 424(f) of the Internal Revenue Code. The exercise price of any stock option award cannot be less than fair market value of the Company's common stock and a term that does not exceed five years. Vesting is subject to the option holder's continued service to the Company, ranging up to a four-year period. Unvested options are subject to forfeiture upon termination of employment. On March 4, 2024, the QT Imaging Plan was terminated in accordance with the terms of the Business Combination Agreement.

The following table summarizes information regarding activity in the QT Imaging Plan and the 2024 Incentive Plan during the six months ended June 30, 2024:

	Number of Options	Weighted- Average Exercise Price		Weighted-Average Remaining Contractual Life (years)
Outstanding, January 1, 2024	1,249,809	\$	24.80	6.9
Cancelled	(12,128)	\$	22.40	
Terminated pursuant to Business Combination Agreement	(1,237,681)	\$	24.83	
Outstanding, June 30, 2024		\$	_	_

There were no options granted during three and six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023.

The following table shows stock-based compensation expense by functional area in the condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023:

		Three Months Ended June 30,			Six Months Ended June 30,			
	2024 2023			2024	2023			
Research and development	\$		\$	26,314	\$	13,950	\$	52,628
Selling, general and administrative		_		182,313		25,034		364,627
	\$		\$	208,627	\$	38,984	\$	417,255

No stock-based compensation expense was capitalized to inventory for three and six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023.

As of June 30, 2024, there was no unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested stock-based compensation awards.

#### 13. National Institutes of Health Subaward

On August 18, 2022, the Company was awarded a grant of up to \$1,078,347 as a subaward through the Board of Trustees of the University of Illinois for the purpose of developing a quantitative ultrasound breast scanner for identifying early response of breast cancer to chemotherapy. The grant is a cost reimbursement subaward that is allocated annually over five years, subject to the availability of funds and satisfactory progress of the project. The award expires July 31, 2027 and may be terminated by either party with 30 days written notice. Any grant proceeds received do not require repayment. As of June 30, 2024, the Company incurred total costs of \$381,921 against the year one allocation of \$351,994 and against the year two allocation of \$194,566. During the three months ended

June 30, 2024, the Company incurred costs of \$25,485, of which \$10,040 of grant income was recognized as an offset to research and development expense and \$15,445 was recognized as an offset to selling, general and administrative expense in the condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss. During the three months ended June 30, 2023, the Company incurred costs of \$86,482, of which \$75,724 of grant income was recognized as an offset to research and development expense and \$10,758 was recognized as an offset to selling, general and administrative expense in the condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss. During the six months ended June 30, 2024, the Company incurred costs of \$32,867, of which \$17,071 of grant income was recognized as an offset to research and development expense in the condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss. During the six months ended June 30, 2023, the Company incurred costs of \$32,867, of which \$17,071 of grant income was recognized as an offset to research and development expense and \$15,796 was recognized as an offset to selling, general and administrative expense in the condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss. During the six months ended June 30, 2023, the Company incurred costs of \$98,717, of which \$86,847 of grant income was recognized as an offset to research and development expense and \$11,870 was recognized as an offset to selling, general and administrative expense in the condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss. As of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the grant receivable was \$25,485 and \$161,638, respectively, and is included in prepaid expenses and other current assets on the condensed consolidated balance sheets.

#### 14. Income Taxes

For the interim periods, the Company estimates its annual effective income tax rate and applies the estimated rate to the year-to-date income or loss before taxes. The Company also computes the tax provision or benefit related to items reported separately and recognizes the effect of changes in enacted tax laws or rates in the interim periods in which the changes occur.

The Company's effective tax rate is 0% for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023. The Company expects that its effective tax rate for the full year 2024 will be 0%.

#### 15. Related Party Transactions

#### Convertible Notes Payable

In July 2020, the Company issued three convertible notes to three of its stockholders for advances up to \$3,500,000 in principal (the "2020 Notes") and bearing annual interest of 5% on any amounts drawn. An additional note was issued in March 2022 as part of the 2020 Notes, but with an annual interest rate of 8%. All principal and interest payments are due on or before July 1, 2025. The 2020 Notes are convertible, at the holder's option, into shares of common stock of the Company at the lower of \$14.59 per share or the offering price in a financing of at least \$5,000,000 in equity from unaffiliated parties. As of June 30, 2024, an aggregate of 247,250 shares of common stock would be issued if the entire principal and interest under the 2020 Notes was converted. Management assessed whether the embedded features in the 2020 Notes should have been bifurcated from the debt host and concluded that none of the features were required to be accounted for separately from the debt instruments.

As of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the outstanding amount of the 2020 Notes was \$3,143,725 and accrued interest of \$463,629 and \$377,772, respectively. Interest expense for the three months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, was \$42,929 and \$45,421, respectively. Interest expense for the six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, was \$85,857 and \$90,344, respectively.

#### Working Capital Loan and Extension Note

On May 3, 2023, the Company issued a promissory note (the "Working Capital Note") to a stockholder for a principal amount of \$250,000. The Working Capital Note was subsequently amended and restated six times on June 12, 2023 to add an additional principal amount of \$100,000, August 15, 2023 to add an additional principal amount of \$75,000, August 29, 2023 to add an additional principal amount of \$100,000, September 12, 2023 to add an additional principal amount of \$50,000, and October 26, 2023 to add an additional principal amount of \$55,000, for an aggregate principal amount outstanding as of June 30, 2024 under the Working Capital Note of \$705,000. The Working Capital Note was issued to provide the Company with additional working capital during the period prior to consummation of the Business Combination Agreement with GigCapital5. The Working Capital Note is interest-free and originally matured on the earlier of (i) the date on which the Company consummated the Business Combination with GigCapital5; (ii) the date the Company winds up; or (iii) December 31, 2023. The Working Capital Note may be prepaid without penalty. On March 4, 2024, the holder of the Working Capital Note agreed to extend and subordinate the promissory note

pursuant to and in accordance with the terms of the Business Combination Agreement. Effective on the Closing of the Business Combination, the Working Capital Note cannot be repaid prior to the repayment or conversion of the Pre-Paid Advance received from Yorkville (see Note 8).

On March 4, 2024, the Company assumed the \$1,560,000 outstanding debt balance due to a related party (the "Extension Note") pursuant to the Business Combination Agreement. The Extension Note does not bear any interest and cannot be repaid prior to the repayment of the Pre-Paid Advance received from Yorkville.

#### Management Services and Business Associate Agreement

In September 2020, QT Imaging entered into a Management Services Agreement (the "Agreement") and a Business Associate Agreement with John C. Klock, M.D., a California sole proprietorship operating as the QT Imaging Center (the "Practice"). John C. Klock, M.D. was the Chief Executive Officer of QT Imaging, serves on its Board of Directors, and was the largest single stockholder of QT Imaging. The Practice provided medical imaging to patients using the QT Breast Scanner. Under the terms of the Agreement, the Company agreed to provide business services to the Practice including use of the facility which formerly operated as the Marin Breast Health Trial Center, including furniture and medical equipment, as well as use of certain personnel. In exchange for those services, the Practice agreed to pay the Company a management fee. Fees paid to QT Imaging during the three months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 were \$0 and \$12,000, respectively. Fees paid to QT Imaging during the six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 were \$0 and \$12,000, respectively. Fees paid to QT Imaging general and administrative expenses on the condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, there were no significant purchases made by the Practice. As of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, there were no significant amounts due from the Practice. This Agreement was terminated and replaced by the Space and Equipment Sublease Agreement on April 17, 2024 and Services Agreement on April 5, 2024.

#### Services Agreement

On April 5, 2024, the Company entered into that certain Services Agreement (the "Services Agreement") with the Practice dated as of April 1, 2024 pursuant to which the Practice agreed to provide its services to the Company, including but not limited to providing healthcare services to patients, assisting with clinical trials and studies and assisting with drafting of institutional review board approved clinical protocols, assisting with the performance of research and development activities on behalf of the Company, providing comprehensive multi-day training on the operation of breast imaging technology for radiologist customers and other customer staff such as technicians, performing clinical validation of imaging software changes which may include recruiting patients, training personnel on the operation of the Company's imaging technology, as well as other services as specified in the Services Agreement. The term of the Services Agreement is one year unless earlier terminated and shall auto-renew for successive one-year periods, unless otherwise terminated. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2024, the Company incurred \$10,521 in accordance with the Services Agreement with a related party.

# Space and Equipment Sublease Agreement

On April 17, 2024, the Company entered into a Space and Equipment Sublease Agreement (the "Space and Equipment Sublease") with the Practice, pursuant to which the Practice will sublease certain medical equipment and space, currently leased from Hamilton Landing Novato LLC by the Company, to the Practice for use in its operations, on a full-time and exclusive basis. The Practice shall pay to the Company a \$5,666 rental fee (the "Rent") for the Subleased Space (as defined in the Space and Equipment Sublease) on a monthly basis, payable on the first day of each month and no later than ten days thereafter, with the Rent to be pro-rated for any partial month. The parties have determined that the Rent equals the fair market value of the Subleased Space and Subleased Equipment (as defined in the Space and Equipment Sublease), without taking into account the proximity of the parties or the space to any source, volume or value of referrals between the parties or any patient thereof. Further, the Practice shall pay when due all sales, use, personal property, leasing, excise or other fees, taxes, charges or withholdings of any kind imposed against the Company, the Practice or the Subleased Equipment with respect to the Space and Equipment Sublease Equipment, or any related fees, receipts or earnings, including local taxes and personal property taxes. The term of the Space and Equipment Sublease is one year unless terminated and shall auto-renew for successive one-year periods, unless otherwise terminated. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2024, the Company recorded \$16,998 of sublease income as other income within the condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss.

**Deferred** Revenue

In July 2023, an order was placed and a downpayment of \$200,000 was made for a breast imaging system by 303 Development Corporation (the "Foundation"). The executive director of the Foundation is a current investor and a was a previous board member of the Company. In September 2023, an additional \$100,000 was paid towards the purchase. In June 2024, the Company cancelled this order and refunded the full deposit of \$300,000 to the related party. As of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Company had a deferred revenue balance of zero and \$300,000, respectively, related to this order.

# Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Unless otherwise indicated or the context otherwise requires, references in this report (this "Quarterly Report") to "we," "our," "us," "QT Imaging", "QT Imaging Holdings" or the "Company" and other similar terms refer to QT Imaging Holdings, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries. The following discussion and analysis provides information which QT Imaging Holding's management believes is relevant to an assessment and understanding of consolidated results of operations and financial condition. You should read the following discussion and analysis of QT Imaging Holdings' financial condition and results of operations in conjunction with the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements and notes thereto contained in this Quarterly Report.

# **Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements**

This Quarterly Report includes "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 21E of the Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), that are not historical facts, and involve risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those expected and projected. All statements, other than statements of historical fact included in this Quarterly Report including, without limitation, statements in this "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" regarding the Company's financial position, business strategy and the plans and objectives of management for future operations, are forward-looking statements. Words such as "expect," "believe," "anticipate," "intend," "estimate," "seek," "may," "might," "plan," "possible," "potential," "should, "would" and similar words and expressions are intended to identify such forward-looking statements. Such forward-looking statements relate to future events or future performance, but reflect management's current beliefs, based on information currently available. A number of factors could cause actual events, performance or results to differ materially from the events, performance and results discussed in the forward-looking statements. For information identifying important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those anticipated in the forward-looking statements, please refer to the "Risk Factors" section in Part II, Item 1A. of this Quarterly Report, the "Risk Factors" section in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 filed with the SEC on March 25, 2024 (our "Annual Report") and in any more recent filings with the SEC. The Company's securities filings can be accessed on the EDGAR section of the SEC's website at www.sec.gov. Except as expressly required by applicable securities law, the Company disclaims any intention or obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements whether

#### Overview

We are a medical device company founded in 2012 and engaged in the research, development, and commercialization of innovative body imaging systems using low energy sound. We believe that medical imaging is critical to the detection, diagnosis, and treatment of disease and that it should be safe, affordable, and accessible. Our goal is to improve global health outcomes through the development and commercialization of imaging devices that address critical healthcare challenges with accuracy and precision.

With the support of nearly \$18 million in financial support from the U.S. National Institutes of Health, we developed a novel, comprehensive body imaging technology that has high resolution, high sensitivity, high specificity, high positive and negative predictive values, and is safe and inexpensive. The technology is based on ultra-low frequency transmitted sound and uses a one-of-a-kind novel sound back-scatter design and inverse-scattering reconstruction to create its images.

Our current QT Breast Scanner is a Class II device subject to premarket notification and clearance under Section 510(k) of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act ("FDCA"). On August 23, 2016, we (formerly, QT Ultrasound LLC) submitted a Section 510(K) Summary of Safety and Effectiveness application for the QT Breast Scanner in accordance with 21 CFR 807.92 under 510(K) Number K162372. As part of meeting the general requirements for basic safety and essential performance of the QT Breast Scanner (formerly, QT Ultrasound Breast Scanner) pursuant to AAMI ES60601-1:2005/(R)2012 and A1:2012 Medical electrical equipment, testing was conducted by Intertek, an independent testing laboratory, located in Menlo Park, CA. Intertek also conducted applicable testing pursuant to IEC 60601-1-6

Edition 3.1 2013-10-Medical electrical equipment Part 1-6 General requirements for safety - Collateral Standard: Usability. In addition, we conducted, and Intertek witnessed, all applicable testing pertaining to the requirements for the safety of ultrasonic medical diagnostic and monitoring equipment and to demonstrate compliance with the "Acoustic Output Measurement Standard for Diagnostic Ultrasound Equipment". This test on acoustic output was pursuant to IEC 60601-2-37 Edition 2.0.2007 Medical electrical equipment - Part 2-37: Particular requirements for the basic safety and essential performance of ultrasonic medical diagnostic and monitoring equipment. Finally, system verification testing was conducted to ensure that the QT Breast Scanner met all design and other requirements including but not limited to that no new issues of safety or effectiveness compared to the predicate device, SoftVue System manufactured by Delphinus Medical Technologies, were raised.

Since our inception, we have devoted substantially all our financial resources to acquiring and developing the base technology for our body imaging systems, conducting research and development activities, securing related intellectual property rights, and for general corporate operations and growth. On June 6, 2017, the Food and Drug Administration ("FDA"), in response to QT's Section 510(K) Summary of Safety and Effectiveness premarket notification, determined that the QT Breast Scanner is substantially equivalent to the predicate device. Our use of the words "safe", "safety", "effectiveness", and "efficacy" in relation to the QT Breast Scanner in this Management's Discussion and Analysis and all other documents related to us is limited to the context of the Section 510(K) Summary of Safety and Effectiveness that was reviewed and responded to by the FDA.

Our strategies to commercializing the QT Breast Scanner include the following:

- Create disruptive innovation using technology (software, artificial intelligence, and smart physics) to improve medical imaging and thus health care quality and access.
- Continue to improve our high quality, high resolution, native 3D, reproducible image quality regardless of operator or breast size/tissue type breast imaging technology, as well as the techniques for quantifiable analysis, comparison, and training.
- Partner with strategic business and distribution channels to address US market for breast imaging immediately and, other regions in the future, to place the QT Breast Scanner in hospitals, radiology centers, etc. and generate awareness of the benefits of QT Imaging technology.
- Perform small scale manufacturing internally to the Company and partner strategically for large scale manufacturing.
- Introduce the first comprehensive body-safe imaging technology into the marketplace, enabling for the first-time well-person body imaging health screening, and the first health screening medical imaging for infants.
- Expand the market by supporting additional Direct-to-Customer and Direct-to-Patient approaches to enable the ability to lower health care costs and increase access via personal medical imaging.
- Provide a new social and economic opportunity for consumers to take control of some aspects of their own health care—such as imaging for minor injuries or medical conditions without needing a healthcare "gate-keeper."
- Focus our intellectual capabilities and ethical framework to become unified in our mission to improve the quality and lower the cost of health care world-wide . . . "It's about time."

Consistent with our strategy, on May 31, 2023, we entered into a confidential Sales Agent Agreement (the "NXC Agreement") with NXC Imaging, Inc. ("NXC"), a wholly owned subsidiary of Canon Medical Systems USA, Inc. ("CMSU"), pursuant to which we appointed NXC as the non-exclusive agent for the sale of QT Imaging products and services in non-exclusive territories: the U.S., U.S. territories, and U.S. Department of Defense installations. Additionally, NXC was appointed as the exclusive servicer of QT Imaging products sold by NXC under the terms of the NXC Agreement. Effective June 10, 2024, the NXC Agreement was superseded by the Distribution Agreement that was entered into with NXC on June 18, 2024 (the "Distribution Agreement"). Under the Distribution Agreement, NXC is appointed as the exclusive reseller to market, advertise, and resell QT Breast Scanners in the U.S. and U.S. territories. NXC will purchase for the purpose of reselling, leasing or renting QT Breast Scanners directly to its customers, but is not obligated to purchase any particular quantity of QT Breast Scanners from us. We have reserved the right to sell directly to customers as an exception. Furthermore, we may, in our sole discretion, sell the QT Breast Scanners to any other person or entity anywhere in the world without notice to NXC or NXC's prior consent. NXC is also allowed to assign sales agents for the purpose of QT Breast Scanner sales. NXC's purchases will be in accordance with an agreed upon product pricing schedule (subject to change upon 60 days' prior written notice by us), provided that neither NXC nor its assigned sales agents may mark-up the cost of the QT Breast Scanners more than twenty percent (20%) unless otherwise mutually agreed to between NXC and us. Each order will include information reasonably requested by us and is subject to our acceptance, after which it becomes an approved order. Any such approved orders are noncancellable and not subject to rescheduling after acceptance by us. Any orders not accepted by us in wr



We have also entered into a non-binding letter of intent (the "Canon Letter of Intent"), with CMSU and Canon Medical Systems, Inc. ("CMSC") pursuant to which four binding purchase orders delivered in January 2024 to QT Imaging for the acquisition by CMSC of two QT Breast Scanners, with 50% of the payment for the QT Breast Scanners having taken place on January 31, 2024 and the remaining payment and the shipment of the two QT Breast Scanners occurred by April 15, 2024, which were delivered to CMSU in March of 2024. CMSC will also use QT Breast scanners that it is acquiring to perform clinical trials towards the possibility of it pursuing the regulatory approval process in Japan.

On March 28, 2024, we entered into a Feasibility Study Agreement (the "Feasibility Study Agreement") with CMSC, a company organized and existing under the laws of Japan ("Canon"). The term of the Feasibility Study Agreement commenced on March 28, 2024 and shall remain in force until the end of December 2024 or until the execution of a definitive agreement that clearly supersedes the Feasibility Study Agreement, whichever comes earlier. In connection with the Feasibility Study Agreement, CMSC will initiate studies to evaluate the business, technical, and clinical values of our ultrasound QT Breast Scanner including product quality validation, development and manufacturing studies, clinical evaluation, regulatory investigation, and market validation. CMSC has no right to reverse engineer the QT Breast Scanner and may only modify and disassemble the QT Breast Scanner as necessary to conduct the feasibility study.

Upon successful conclusion of the feasibility study, we and CMSC intend to engage in a good faith discussion to develop a binding Original Equipment Manufacturer ("OEM") agreement with CMSC, with such agreement targeted for execution in the second half of 2024. Under the contemplated OEM agreement, CMSC will commercialize and service the QT Breast Scanner worldwide, with Canon-branded systems to be sold exclusively through Canon global channels, including by NXC as provided for in the NXC Agreement, and a license fee to be mutually agreed upon to be paid to us for each system sold by Canon or its partners. The parties also intend that CMSU will leverage the contemplated OEM agreement to source QT Breast Scanners for sale in the U.S. on terms to be mutually agreed upon.

We have incurred net operating losses and negative cash flows from operations since our inception and had an accumulated deficit of \$28,503,111 as of June 30, 2024. During the six months ended June 30, 2024, we incurred a net loss of \$5,547,464 and used \$6,955,081 of cash in operating activities, which includes the repayment of net liabilities assumed from the business combination. We continue to incur losses, and our ability to achieve and sustain profitability will depend on the achievement of sufficient revenues to support our cost structure. We may never achieve profitability and, unless and until we do, we will need to continue to raise additional capital.

We expect to incur additional recurring administrative expenses associated as a publicly traded company, including costs associated with compliance under the Exchange Act, annual and quarterly reports to stockholders, transfer agent fees, audit fees, incremental director and officer liability insurance costs, Sarbanes-Oxley Act compliance readiness, and director and officer compensation.

# **Recent Developments**

On March 4, 2024 (the "Merger Date"), QT Imaging, Inc., GigCapital5, Inc. ("GigCapital5"), and QT Merger Sub, Inc. ("QT Merger Sub"), consummated the closing of the transactions contemplated by the Business Combination Agreement, dated December 8, 2022, by and among QT Imaging, GigCapital5, and QT Merger Sub (the "Business Combination Agreement"), following the approval at an annual stockholders meeting of the stockholders of GigCapital5 held on February 20, 2024 (the "Stockholders Meeting").

Pursuant to the terms of the Business Combination Agreement, a business combination of QT Imaging and GigCapital5 was effected by the merger of QT Merger Sub with and into QT Imaging, with QT Imaging surviving the merger as a wholly owned subsidiary of GigCapital5 (the "Merger," and, together with the other transactions contemplated by the Business Combination Agreement, the "Business Combination"). In connection with the consummation of the Business Combination on the day of the Merger Date, GigCapital5 changed its name from GigCapital5, Inc. to QT Imaging Holdings, Inc.

On November 10, 2023, we entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement and raised a private secured convertible bridge financing in the aggregate amount of \$1,000,000 ("Bridge Loan") from five investors ("Bridge Lenders") led by Meteora Capital Partners, LP ("Meteora") and collateralized by all of our assets. The notes from the Bridge Loan are interest-free but at the option of the holder, (a) can be repaid at the Closing of the Business Combination by the QTI Holdings in cash in the amount of \$240,000 to each investor, or (b) is convertible immediately prior to the Closing of the Business Combination into such number of shares of QT Imaging common stock that upon the completion of the Business Combination and the application of the exchange ratio was exchanged for such consideration as is provided for in the Business Combination Agreement, including that number of shares of our common stock as is equal in the aggregate to

500,000 shares of our common stock. On March 4, 2024, four of the five Bridge Lenders elected to be repaid in cash for an aggregate of \$960,000 and one Bridge Lender converted \$200,000 into 100,000 shares of our common stock.

We also entered into the stock subscription agreements dated November 10, 2023 with three of the Bridge Lenders as subscribers for the purchase of shares of QT Imaging common stock at an aggregate purchase price of \$3,000,000 in such amount that upon the completion of the Business Combination and the application of the Exchange Ratio was exchanged for such consideration as is provided for in the Business Combination Agreement, including that number of shares of QT Imaging common stock as is equal in the aggregate to 1,200,000 shares of our common stock. Immediately prior to the close of the Business Combination, each subscriber received that number of shares of QT Imaging common stock. In addition, as consideration for its services for the stock subscription agreements, Meteora received that number of shares of QT Imaging common stock that upon the completion of the Stock subscription agreements, Meteora received that number of shares of QT Imaging common stock that upon the completion of the Stock subscription agreements, of the stock subscription agreements of QT Imaging common stock that upon the completion of the stock subscription agreements, Meteora received that number of shares of QT Imaging common stock that upon the completion of the Business Combination was exchanged for 50,000 shares of our common stock that upon the completion of the Business Combination was exchanged for 50,000 shares of QT Imaging common stock that upon the completion of the Business Combination was exchanged for 50,000 shares of QT Imaging common stock that upon the completion of the Business Combination was exchanged for 50,000 shares of QT Imaging common stock that upon the completion of the Business Combination was exchanged for 50,000 shares of our common stock that upon the completion of the Business Combination was exchanged for 50,000 shares of our common stock that upon the completion of the Business Combination was exchanged for 50,000 shares of our common stock.

On November 10, 2023, we entered into a Fourth Amendment and Termination Agreement ("Fourth Amendment") of the private placement agreement dated December 15, 2020 with US Capital Global QT Ultrasound LLC ("USCG QT"), an affiliate of US Capital Global ("US Capital" or "USCG"). In conjunction with this Fourth Amendment, we, US Capital, and Meteora executed a subordination agreement (the "USCG Subordination") whereby we granted USCG QT a warrant to purchase 25,000 shares of QT Imaging common stock with a strike price of \$2.50 in exchange for subordinating their senior secured position to Meteora. US Capital was also issued a \$200,000 senior secured convertible promissory note (the "US Capital Note") by us as part of the Bridge Loan to terminate the private placement agreement on a go forward basis (see the Bridge Loan above), a warrant to purchase 35,329 shares of QT Imaging common stock with a strike price of \$2.50 and was entitled to a commission payable of \$20,000 in connection with the Bridge Loan. On March 4, 2024, these warrants automatically net exercised into 16,320 shares of QT Imaging common stock and subsequently converted into 5,594 shares of our common stock pursuant to the terms of the Business Combination Agreement.

On November 15, 2023, we entered into a Standby Equity Purchase Agreement with GigCapital5 and Yorkville Advisors Global, LP ("Yorkville"), pursuant to which, upon the closing of the Business Combination, QTI Holdings can sell to Yorkville up to \$50.0 million of QTI Holdings common stock at QTI Holdings' request any time during the 36 months following the closing of the Business Combination. In addition, we can also request a pre-paid advance from Yorkville up to an amount of \$10.0 million at the closing of the Business Combination (the "Pre-Paid Advance") as evidenced by a convertible promissory note (the "Yorkville Note"). As consideration for the Pre-Paid Advance, immediately prior to, and substantially concurrently with, the Closing of the Business Combination. On March 4, 2024, we received the Pre-Paid Advance of \$9,025,000 from Yorkville that is due 15 months from the date of issuance, and accrues interest on the outstanding balance of the Yorkville Note at an annual rate equal to 6%, subject to an increase to 18% upon an event of default as described in the Yorkville Note. The Yorkville Note is convertible by Yorkville into shares of our common stock.

On December 19, 2023, we entered into an additional stock subscription agreement for the aggregate purchase price of \$500,000 in such amount that upon the completion of the Business Combination and the application of the exchange ratio was exchanged for such consideration as was provided for in the Business Combination Agreement, including that number of shares of QT Imaging common stock as was equal in the aggregate to 200,000 shares of the Company's common stock. On February 28, 2024, we received \$500,000 in exchange for 583,596 shares of QT Imaging common stock, which converted into 200,000 shares of our common stock in accordance with the terms of the Business Combination Agreement.

In February 2024, we entered into a subscription agreement with William Blair & Co., L.L.C. ("William Blair") for the purchase of shares of QT Imaging common stock. Pursuant to the subscription agreement, we issued to William Blair in satisfaction of certain fees owed to William Blair for its services to us, that number of shares of QT Imaging common stock which at the completion of the Business Combination were converted in accordance with the terms of the Business Combination Agreement into 740,000 shares of our common stock.

In February 2024, we agreed to amend one of the non-redemption agreements entered into in September 2023 ("September 2023 Non-Redemption Agreements"), pursuant to which, and in addition to our common stock issuable to Mizuho Securities USA, LLC ("Mizuho"), Mizuho received from QT Imaging, in exchange for \$250,000 of services rendered by Mizuho, that number of QT Imaging's common stock that converted in accordance with the terms of the Business Combination Agreement into 100,000 shares of our common stock.

In February 2024, we entered into two additional subscription agreements with each of Donnelley Financial Solutions, LLC ("DFIN") and IB Capital LLC ("iBankers"), dated as of February 23, 2024 and February 22, 2024, respectively (together, the "Subscription Agreements"), for the purchase of shares of QT Imaging common stock. Pursuant to the Subscription Agreements, we issued to each of DFIN and iBankers in satisfaction of \$500,000 and \$600,000 of fees owed to DFIN and iBankers, respectively, for their services, that number of shares of QT Imaging common stock which at the completion of the Business Combination converted in accordance with the terms of the Business Combination Agreement into 200,000 and 240,000 respective shares of our common stock.

In February 2024, we entered into a Note Purchase Agreement with Funicular Funds, LP ("Cable Car"), pursuant to which Cable Car agreed to advance \$1,500,000 at the closing of the Business Combination, as was evidenced by a promissory note that may be convertible in certain circumstances into shares of our common stock at a conversion price of \$2.00 per share (the "Loan") dated March 4, 2024 by and between us and Cable Car. The Loan does not bear interest, and is due and payable 13 months after issuance, unless the time for payment is accelerated as a result of an event of default. As full compensation to Cable Car for the Loan to us in lieu of any simple or in-kind interest on the Loan, we issued to Cable Car that number of shares of QT Imaging common stock which at the completion of the Business Combination were converted in accordance with the terms of the Business Combination Agreement into 180,000 shares of our common stock. QT Imaging, and its wholly owned subsidiary, QT Ultrasound Labs, Inc., at the closing also provided a guaranty (the "Cable Car Guaranty"), whereby each of them unconditionally guaranteed, as primary obligor and not merely as surety, the prompt and complete payment and performance when due, whether by demand, acceleration or otherwise, of our obligation under the Loan in the currency in which and as such obligations are to be paid or performed. Furthermore, we and the parties to the Cable Car Guaranty (the "Grantors") granted a security interest in certain of their assets, which among other things, do not include their intellectual property assets, pursuant to the terms of a Security Agreement, dated March 4, 2024, by and between the Grantors and Cable Car.

In February 2024, we and LionBay Ventures ("LionBay") entered into a Settlement and Termination Agreement (the "Termination Agreement"). Pursuant to the terms of the Termination Agreement, we terminated the Service Agreement with LionBay dated May 18, 2021 and the First Amendment of the Service Agreement dated September 9, 2021 (collectively as the "Service Agreement"). In exchange for the termination of the Service Agreement and the termination of options to purchase 17,000 shares of QT Imaging common stock with a strike price of \$8.50 per option that were issued as part of the Service Agreement, we agreed to issue 10,000 shares of our common stock.

On March 4, 2024 and in accordance with the terms of the Business Combination Agreement, we cancelled and terminated all outstanding warrants that were deemed out of the money with an exercise price of or above \$11.67 per share, including all warrants sold as part of the Units in the 2022 Offering and warrants that were issued to consultants and placement agents in association with debt issuance and past private offerings.

On March 4, 2024, we terminated the QT Imaging Incentive Plan (the "2024 Incentive Plan") and cancelled 1,237,681 of outstanding options under the 2024 Incentive Plan in accordance with the terms of the Business Combination Agreement.

On March 4, 2024, the Note principal and related accrued interest balance of \$3,233,388 and the US Capital Note principal balance of \$200,000 was converted into 359,266 and 100,000 shares of our common stock, respectively. Additionally, warrants to purchase 60,329 shares of QT Imaging common stock were net settled into 16,320 shares of QT Imaging common stock, which then converted into 5,594 shares of our common stock in accordance with the terms of the Business Combination Agreement.

On March 4, 2024, as consideration for the September 2023 Non-Redemption Agreements, we issued 427,477 shares of our common stock to certain non-redeeming GigCapital5 stockholders ("Non-Redeeming Stockholders").

On March 12, 2024, the Board of Directors (the "Board") appointed Dr. Raluca Dinu, who is also a member of the Board, to be employed as our Acting Chief Executive Officer effective as of March 12, 2024. Dr. Dinu will report to the Board. On March 18, 2024, the Board approved an employment agreement between Dr. Dinu and us, effective as of March 12, 2024, governing the terms of Dr. Dinu's employment by us, which we and Dr. Dinu then entered into.

On March 12, 2024, the Board ratified the prior appointment of Anastas Budagov as our Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Budagov will report to the Chief Executive Officer. On March 18, 2024, the Board approved an employment letter between Mr. Budagov and the Company, effective as of March 12, 2024, governing the terms of Mr. Budagov's employment by us, which we and Mr. Budagov then entered into.

On April 3, 2024, we entered into a Data Use and License Agreement with QT Imaging Center, a California sole proprietorship of Dr. Klock (the "Practice"), that conducts a medical practice and provides medical services, pursuant to which we were granted a license to use and disclose certain deidentified health information, as has been de-identified by the Practice in accordance with applicable law, for use in research and analytical processes in connection with our development and commercialization of the QT Ultrasound Breast Scanner-1 and other technologies.

On April 5, 2024, the Company entered into that certain Services Agreement (the "Services Agreement") with the Practice dated as of April 1, 2024 pursuant to which the Practice agreed to provide its services us, including but not limited to providing healthcare services to patients, assisting with clinical trials and studies and assisting with drafting of institutional review board approved clinical protocols, assisting with the performance of research and development activities on our behalf, providing comprehensive multi-day training on the operation of breast imaging technology for radiologist customers and other customer staff such as technicians, performing clinical validation of imaging software changes which may include recruiting patients, training of personnel on the operation of our imaging technology, as well as other services as specified in the Services Agreement. The term of the Services Agreement is one year unless earlier terminated and shall auto-renew for successive one-year periods, unless otherwise terminated.

On April 17, 2024, we entered into a Space and Equipment Sublease Agreement (the "Space and Equipment Sublease") with the Practice, pursuant to which the Practice will sublease certain medical equipment and space, currently leased from Hamilton Landing Novato LLC by us, to the Practice for use in its operations, on a full-time and exclusive basis. The Practice shall pay to us a \$5,666 rental fee (the "Rent") for the Subleased Space (as defined in the Space and Equipment Sublease) on a monthly basis, payable on the first day of each month and no later than ten days thereafter, with the Rent to be prorated for any partial month. The parties have determined that the Rent equals the fair market value of the Subleased Space and Subleased Equipment (as defined in the Space and Equipment Sublease), without taking into account the proximity of the parties or the space to any source, volume or value of referrals between the parties or any patient thereof. Further, the Practice shall pay when due all sales, use, personal property, leasing, excise or other fees, taxes, charges or withholdings of any kind imposed against us, the Practice or the Subleased Equipment with respect to the Space and Equipment Sublease, the Subleased Equipment, or any related fees, receipts or earnings, including local taxes and personal property taxes. The term of the Space and Equipment Sublease is one year unless terminated and shall auto-renew for successive one-year periods, unless otherwise terminated.

On June 18, 2024, QT Imaging entered into that certain Distribution Agreement with NXC (the "Distribution Agreement"), effective as of June 10, 2024, which will thereafter govern our sales and distribution relationship with NXC, replacing the Sales Agent Agreement. Under the Distribution Agreement, NXC is appointed as the exclusive reseller to market, advertise, and resell certain equipment in the U.S. and U.S. territories, and will purchase for the purpose of reselling, leasing or renting the same directly to its customers. The term of the Distribution Agreement will remain in effect until December 31, 2025, unless earlier terminated or extended by mutual written agreement.

# **Components of Our Results of Operations**

#### Revenue

Revenue consists of revenue from the sale of our products including the QT Breast Scanner, accessories, and related services, which are primarily training and maintenance. For sales of products (which include the QT Breast Scanner and any accessories), revenue is recognized when a customer obtains control of the promised goods. The amount of revenue recognized reflects the consideration we expect to be entitled to receive in exchange for these goods. Service revenue is generally related to maintenance and training the customer. Service revenue is recognized at the time the related performance obligation is satisfied, in an amount that reflects the consideration that we expect to receive in exchange for those services.

# Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue consists of our product costs, including manufacturing costs, personnel costs and benefits, duties and other applicable importing costs, shipping and handling costs, packaging, warranty replacement costs, fulfillment costs and inventory obsolescence and write-offs. We expect our cost of revenue to increase in absolute dollars and decrease as a percentage of revenues over time as we shift to new manufacturing processes and vendors that we anticipate will result in greater efficiency and lower per unit costs.

We expect we will continue to invest additional resources into our products to expand and further develop our offerings. The level and timing of investment in these areas could affect our cost of revenue in the future.



# **Operating Expenses**

# Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses consist primarily of costs incurred in connection with the research and development of our products, which include payroll and payroll related expenses, facilities costs, depreciation expense, materials and supplies, and consultant costs.

We expense all research and development costs in the periods in which such costs are incurred. Research and development activities are central to our business. We expect that our research and development expenses will increase substantially for the foreseeable future as we continue to invest in the development of the QT Breast Scanner and devote significant resources to the research and development of the full-body scanner product candidate intended for orthopedic and pediatric use.

As of the date of this Form 10-Q, we cannot reasonably determine the nature, timing and costs of the efforts that will be necessary to complete the enhancements of the QT Breast Scanner, or estimate the nature, timing and costs that will be necessary to complete the development of, and obtain regulatory approval for, the full-body scanner product candidate. The process of conducting the necessary research and development to obtain regulatory approval of a product candidate is costly and time-consuming, and the successful development of our product candidates is highly uncertain. Our research and development expenses may vary significantly based on factors such as, without limitation:

- The timing and progress of development activities;
- Our ability to maintain our current research and development programs and to establish new ones;
- The receipt of regulatory approvals from applicable regulatory authorities without the need for independent clinical trials or validation;
- Duration of subject participation in any trials and follow-ups;
- The countries and jurisdictions in which the trials are conducted;
- Length of time required to enroll eligible subjects and initiate trials;
- Per trial subject costs;
- Number of trials required for regulatory approval;
- The timing, receipt, and terms of any marketing approvals from applicable regulatory authorities;
- The success of our distribution arrangements, and our ability to establish new licensing or collaboration arrangements;
- Establishing contract manufacturing partnerships or making arrangements with third-party manufacturers;
- The hiring and retention of research and development personnel;
- Obtaining, maintaining, defending, and enforcing intellectual property rights; and
- The phases of development of our product candidates.

Any changes in the outcome of any of these variables with respect to the development of our products or product candidates could significantly change the costs and timing associated with the development of these products and product candidates.

# Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses consist primarily of personnel costs, costs related to maintenance and filings of intellectual property, and other expenses for outside professional services, including legal, consulting, investor relations, audit and accounting services. Our personnel costs consist of salaries, benefits and stock-based compensation expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses include facilities, depreciation and other expenses, which include direct or allocated expenses for rent and maintenance of facilities and insurance. Selling, general and administrative expenses also include consulting expenses and costs for conferences, meetings, and other events.

We anticipate that our selling, general and administrative expenses will increase to support our expanding headcount and operations, increased costs of operating as a public company, the development of a commercial infrastructure to support commercialization of our products and product candidates, increased support for existing and new distribution

partner relationships, and the use of outside service providers such as insurers, consultants, lawyers, and accountants. We also expect selling expenses to increase in the near term as we promote our brand through marketing and advertising initiatives, expand market presence and hire additional personnel to drive penetration and generate leads.

# **Results of Operations**

#### Comparison of the three months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

	For Three Months Ended June 30,				Change		
	 2024		2023		\$	%	
Revenue	\$ 1,714,035	\$	3,183	\$	1,710,852	N.M.	
Cost of revenue	839,484		3,121		836,363	N.M.	
Gross profit (loss)	 874,551		62		874,489	N.M.	
Operating expenses:				_			
Research and development	925,082		349,657		575,425	165 %	
Selling, general and administrative	2,169,541		848,831		1,320,710	156 %	
Total operating expenses	 3,094,623		1,198,488		1,896,135	158 %	
Loss from operations	 (2,220,072)	_	(1,198,426)		(1,021,646)	(85)%	
Other expense, net	(187,394)				(187,394)	(100)%	
Change in fair value of warrant liability	213,942				213,942	100 %	
Change in fair value of derivative liability	1,729,700				1,729,700	100 %	
Change in fair value of earnout liability	310,000		—		310,000	100 %	
Interest expense, net	(1,095,050)		(131,588)		(963,462)	(732)%	
Net loss and comprehensive loss	\$ (1,248,874)	\$	(1,330,014)	\$	81,140	6 %	

N.M. - Not meaningful

#### Revenue

Revenue increased by \$1,710,852 to \$1,714,035 for the three months ended June 30, 2024 from \$3,183 for the three months ended June 30, 2023. The increase in revenue was primarily attributable to the sale of four QT Breast Scanners in the second quarter of 2024 as compared with no scanners sold in the second quarter of 2023 due to the timing of sales orders received, availability of scanners that were earmarked and ready for sale to customers, and the result of our ongoing commercialization effort in 2024.

# Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue increased by \$836,363 to \$839,484 for the three months ended June 30, 2024 from \$3,121 for the three months ended June 30, 2023. The increase in cost of revenue was primarily attributable to the sale of four QT Breast Scanners in the second quarter of 2024 as compared with no scanners sold in the second quarter of 2023, which was partially offset by inventory write-offs in the second quarter of 2023.

# **Operating Expenses**`

# Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses increased by \$575,425 to \$925,082 for the three months ended June 30, 2024 from \$349,657 for the three months ended June 30, 2023. The increase in research and development expenses was primarily attributable to an increase in employee compensation costs of \$265,408 and professional and outside services costs of \$228,504.

# Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased by \$1,320,710 to \$2,169,541 for the three months ended June 30, 2024 from \$848,831 for the three months ended June 30, 2023. This change was primarily attributable to an increase in professional and outside services cost of \$332,064, insurance costs of \$232,074, and employee compensation costs of \$578,694.

#### Other expense, net

Other expenses, net increased by \$187,394 during the three months ended June 30, 2024. There were no other expenses during the three months ended June 30, 2023. This increase was primarily due to a modification expense of \$200,513 related to the decrease in exercise price of our private placement warrants and working capital note warrants.

# Change in fair value of warrant liability

Change in fair value of warrant liability was \$213,942 during the three months ended June 30, 2024. The change in fair value of warrants relates to the liability classified private placement warrants and working capital note warrants and reflects the decrease of publicly traded price per warrant during the three months ended June 30, 2024.

# Change in fair value of derivative liability

Change in the fair value of derivative liability was \$1,729,700 during the three months ended June 30, 2024. The change in fair value of derivatives was primarily driven by the decline in the value of our common stock during the three months ended June 30, 2024.

#### Change in fair value of earnout liability

Change in the fair value of earnout liability was \$310,000 during the three months ended June 30, 2024. The earnout liability relates to the contingent consideration for the Merger Earnout Consideration Shares pursuant to the Business Combination Agreement dated December 8, 2022, as amended in September of 2023. We did not have an earnout liability during the three months ended June 30, 2023.

# Interest expense, net

Interest expense, net increased by \$963,462 to \$1,095,050 for the three months ended June 30, 2024 from \$131,588 for the three months ended June 30, 2023. This change is primarily driven by an increase in the amortization of debt discount of \$902,065 for the Pre-Paid Advance and the Cable Car Promissory Note and accrued interest expense of \$149,589 for the Pre-Paid Advance.

# Comparison of the six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

	For Six Months Ended June 30,				Change		
	 2024		2023		\$	%	
Revenue	\$ 3,076,198	\$	10,747	\$	3,065,451	N.M.	
Cost of revenue	1,441,567		49,698		1,391,869	N.M.	
Gross profit (loss)	 1,634,631		(38,951)		1,673,582	N.M.	
Operating expenses:							
Research and development	1,567,628		771,544		796,084	103 %	
Selling, general and administrative	7,865,752		2,140,596		5,725,156	267 %	
Total operating expenses	 9,433,380		2,912,140		6,521,240	224 %	
Loss from operations	 (7,798,749)		(2,951,091)	_	(4,847,658)	(164)%	
Other expense	(208,325)		_		(208,325)	(100)%	
Change in fair value of warrant liability	190,819				190,819	100 %	
Change in fair value of derivative liability	4,712,800				4,712,800	100 %	
Change in fair value of earnout liability	(750,000)		_		(750,000)	(100)%	
Interest expense, net	(1,694,009)		(261,870)		(1,432,139)	(547)%	
Net loss and comprehensive loss	\$ (5,547,464)	\$	(3,212,961)	\$	(2,334,503)	(73)%	

N.M. - Not meaningful

# Revenue

Revenue increased by \$3,065,451 to \$3,076,198 for the six months ended June 30, 2024 from \$10,747 for the six months ended June 30, 2023. The increase in revenue was primarily attributable to the sale of seven QT Breast Scanners in

the first and second quarters of 2024 as compared with no scanners sold in the first six months of 2023 due to the timing of sales orders received, availability of scanners that were earmarked and ready for sale to customers, and the result of our ongoing commercialization effort in 2024.

# Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue increased by \$1,391,869 to \$1,441,567 for the six months ended June 30, 2024 from \$49,698 for the six months ended June 30, 2023. The increase in cost of revenue was primarily attributable to the sale of seven QT Breast Scanners in the first and second quarters of 2024 as compared with no scanners sold in the first six months of 2023, which was partially offset by inventory write-offs in the first six months of 2023.

# **Operating Expenses**

#### Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses increased by \$796,084 to \$1,567,628 for the six months ended June 30, 2024 from \$771,544 for the six months ended June 30, 2023. The increase in research and development expenses was primarily attributable to an increase in employee compensation costs of \$441,807 and professional and outside services costs of \$273,965.

#### Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased by \$5,725,156 to \$7,865,752 for the six months ended June 30, 2024 from \$2,140,596 for the six months ended June 30, 2023. This change was primarily attributable to increases in non-recurring transaction expenses of \$3,944,924 related to the business combination, professional and outside services costs of \$362,865, non-recurring recruiting and employee conversion costs of \$224,000, insurance costs of \$314,253, employee compensation costs of \$626,293, and information technology costs of \$99,388.

#### Other expense, net

Other expenses, net increased by \$208,325 during the six months ended June 30, 2024. There were no other expenses during the six months ended June 30, 2023. This increase was primarily due to a modification expense of \$200,513 related to the decrease in exercise price of our private placement warrants and working capital note warrants.

#### Change in fair value of warrant liability

Change in fair value of warrant liability was \$190,819 during the six months ended June 30, 2024. The change in fair value of warrants relates to the liability classified private placement warrants and working capital note warrants and reflects the decrease of publicly traded price per warrant during the six months ended June 30, 2024.

#### Change in fair value of derivative liability

Change in the fair value of derivative liability was \$4,712,800 during the six months ended June 30, 2024. The change in fair value of derivatives was primarily driven by the decline in the value of our common stock during the six months ended June 30, 2024.

#### Change in fair value of earnout liability

Change in the fair value of earnout liability was \$750,000 during the six months ended June 30, 2024. The earnout liability relates to the contingent consideration for the Merger Earnout Consideration Shares pursuant to the Business Combination Agreement dated December 8, 2022, as amended in September of 2023. We did not have an earnout liability during the six months ended June 30, 2023.

#### Interest expense, net

Interest expense, net increased by \$1,432,139 to \$1,694,009 for the six months ended June 30, 2024 from \$261,870 for the six months ended June 30, 2023. This change is primarily driven by an increase in the amortization of debt discount of \$1,200,669 for the Bridge Loans, the Pre-Paid Advance, the Cable Car Promissory Note and the Extension Note, an increase in accrued interest expense of \$193,973 for the Pre-Paid Advance, and an increase in interest of \$160,000 paid in cash related to the Bridge Loans.

#### Liquidity and Capital Resources

# Sources of Liquidity

Liquidity describes our ability to meet financial obligations which arise during the normal course of business. To date, we have financed our operations primarily through the sale of equity securities, issuances of convertible notes and other debt, and grants from the U.S. government. We expect to derive future liquidity primarily through our revenues with customers and sale of equity securities. Our current liquidity position consists of cash on hand and certificates of deposit.

Since our inception, we have incurred significant operating losses and negative cash flows. As of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, we had an accumulated deficit of \$28,503,111 and \$17,770,145, respectively. As of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, we had cash and restricted cash and cash equivalents of \$4,601,140 and \$184,686, respectively. Our primary uses of cash are for general working capital requirements, and capital expenditures. Cash flows from operations have been historically negative as we invested in product development, clinical trials, and manufacturing. We expect to be cash flow negative for the foreseeable future, although we may have quarterly results where cash flows from operations are positive.

In connection with the Business Combination, we entered into various agreements to obtain financing through the issuance of debt and through stock subscription agreements. In March of 2024, we received the Pre-Paid Advance net of issuance costs of \$9,025,000 from Yorkville pursuant to the SEPA, \$500,000 of cash proceeds from an investor related to a stock subscription agreement, and \$1,500,000 in cash proceeds through a note payable from Cable Car. The Standby Equity Purchase Agreement provides us with access to an additional \$40 million of potential capital through the issuance of common stock to Yorkville. During the time we have a balance under the Pre-Paid Advance, advances can be received with written consent of Yorkville or upon a trigger event, which occurs when the daily volume-weighted average price is less than \$2.00 per share for five consecutive trading days. We believe that the additional cash received and financing arrangements at the closing of the Business Combination will be sufficient to fund our current operating plan for at least the next 12 months.

Our future capital requirements will depend on many factors, including our growth rate, the timing and extent of our spending to support research and development activities, the timing and cost of establishing additional sales and marketing capabilities, and the timing and cost to introduce new and enhanced products. In the event that additional financing is required from outside sources, we may not be able to raise it on terms acceptable to us or at all. Any additional debt financing obtained by us in the future could also involve restrictive covenants relating to our capital-raising activities and other financial and operational matters, which may make it more difficult for us to obtain additional capital and to pursue business opportunities, including potential acquisitions. Additionally, if we raise additional funds through further issuances of equity, convertible debt securities or other securities convertible into equity, our existing stockholders could suffer significant dilution in their percentage ownership of the Company, and any new equity securities we issue could have rights, preferences and privileges senior to those of holders of our common stock. If we are unable to obtain adequate financing or financing on terms satisfactory to us when we require it, our ability to continue to grow or support our business and to respond to business challenges could be significantly limited.

#### **Paycheck Protection Program Loan**

On February 24, 2021 and May 5, 2020, we received loans ("PPP Loans") from US Bank to fund payroll, rent and utilities through the Paycheck Protection Program ("PPP"). We received partial forgiveness on the PPP Loans during fiscal year 2021. The remaining balances on the PPP Loans are being repaid on a monthly basis, with interest of 1% per annum and the final payment due in February 2026.

As of June 30, 2024, the total principal outstanding under the PPP Loans was \$161,330, of which \$124,632 was current and \$36,698 was noncurrent. As of December 31, 2023, the total principal outstanding under the PPP Loans was \$226,348, of which \$130,366 was current and \$95,982 was noncurrent.

# **Convertible** Notes Payable

In June 2021, we entered into a convertible promissory note agreement (the "Note") with USCG for advances of up to \$10,000,000. We could have made advances on the Note up to six months after the inception of the Note unless extensions for advances were mutually agreed between both parties. The Note bore interest at 12% per annum on any amounts drawn with maturity date of July 6, 2024. The Note was collateralized by all our assets and was guaranteed by QT Labs. The terms of the Note include non-financial covenants and, as of March 4, 2024 when the Note converted, we were in compliance with those covenants. Through December 31, 2023, we issued warrants in connection with the note to

purchase a total of 5,091 shares of common stock which 3,540 shares are exercisable at a price of \$12.40 per share and 1,551 shares are exercisable at a price of \$11.67 per share. On March 4, 2024, these warrants were terminated in accordance with the Business Combination Agreement.

The Note was convertible, at our option, before the Note matured upon the closing of a single transaction or a series of transactions with a minimum of \$15,000,000 of cash proceeds raised in the aggregate. If elected, the conversion price is 90% of the price per share in the qualified financing.

As of December 31, 2023, the total Note and US Capital Note balance was \$3,294,659 net of unamortized debt issuance costs of \$36,194, and accrued interest of \$50,037.

On March 4, 2024, the Note principal and related accrued interest balance of \$3,233,388 and the US Capital Note principal balance of \$200,000 (as further discussed below under the Bridge Loan section) was converted into 359,266 and 100,000 shares of our common stock, respectively. Additionally, warrants to purchase 16,320 shares of our common stock were net settled into 5,594 shares of our common stock.

#### Bridge Loan

In November 2023, we entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement and raised a private secured convertible bridge financing in the aggregate amount of \$1,000,000 from five investors. Each Bridge Loan of \$200,000 bore no interest but had a cash option value at the date maturity of 120% or \$240,000 of the Bridge Loan at each Bridge Lender's option. The maturity date was the closing date of the Business Combination as defined in Note 1. The Bridge Loan conversion was at \$2.00 per share on a post-business combination. On March 4, 2024, 4 of the 5 Bridge Loan holders elected the cash option and were paid an aggregate of \$960,000 on the Merger Date.

As of June 30, 2024, there was \$0 amount outstanding for the Bridge Loan. As of December 31, 2023, the outstanding amount of the Bridge Loan, excluding the US Capital Note, was \$774,337, net of unamortized debt issuance costs of \$25,663.

#### Yorkville Pre-Paid Advance

On March 4, 2024, we received the Pre-Paid Advance of \$10,000,000 from Yorkville that will be due 15 months from the date of issuance, and interest shall accrue on the outstanding balance of the Yorkville Note at an annual rate equal to 6%, subject to an increase to 18% upon an event of default as described in the Yorkville Note. The Yorkville Note is convertible by Yorkville into shares of our common stock. As consideration for the Pre-Paid Advance, immediately prior to, and substantially concurrently with, the closing of the Business Combination, QT Imaging issued to Yorkville that number of QT Imaging shares which converted in the aggregate into 1,000,000 shares of our common stock upon the completion of the Business Combination.

As of June 30, 2024, the outstanding amount of the Pre-Paid Advance was \$3,030,909 net of the unamortized discount of \$6,969,091 and accrued interest of \$193,973.

#### Cable Car Loan

In February 2024, we and GigCapital5 entered into the Cable Car Loan with Cable Car, pursuant to which Cable Car agreed to advance \$1,500,000 at the closing of the Business Combination, as was evidenced by a promissory note that may be convertible in certain circumstances into shares of our common stock at a conversion price of \$2.00 per share, dated March 4, 2024, by and between us and Cable Car. The Loan does not bear interest, and is due and payable 13 months after issuance, unless the time for payment is accelerated as a result of an event of default. As full compensation to Cable Car for the Loan to us in lieu of any simple or in-kind interest on the Loan, QT Imaging issued to Cable Car that number of QT Imaging shares of common stock which at the completion of the Business Combination would be converted in accordance with the terms of the Business Combination Agreement into 180,000 shares of our common stock.

As of June 30, 2024, the outstanding amount of the Cable Car Loan was \$1,138,668 net of issuance costs of \$361,332.

# **Related Party Convertible Notes Payable**

In July 2020, we issued three convertible notes to three of its stockholders for advances up to \$3,500,000 in principal (the "2020 Notes") and bearing annual interest of 5% on any amounts drawn. An additional note was issued in March 2022

as part of the 2020 Notes, but with an annual interest rate of 8%. All principal and interest payments are due on or before July 1, 2025. The 2020 Notes are convertible, at the holder's option, into shares of common stock at the lower of \$14.59 per share or the offering price in a financing of at least \$5,000,000 in equity from unaffiliated parties. As of June 30, 2024, an aggregate of 247,250 shares of common stock would be issued if the entire principal and interest under the 2020 Notes was converted.

As of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the outstanding amount of the 2020 Notes was \$3,143,725 and accrued interest of \$463,629 and \$377,772, respectively.

# **Related Party Working Capital Loan and Extension Note**

On May 3, 2023, we issued a promissory note (the "Working Capital Note") to a stockholder for a principal amount of \$250,000. The Working Capital Note was subsequently amended and restated six times on June 12, 2023 to add an additional principal amount of \$100,000, August 15, 2023 to add an additional principal amount of \$75,000, August 29, 2023 to add an additional principal amount of \$100,000, September 12, 2023 to add an additional principal amount of \$75,000, September 15, 2023 to add an additional principal amount of \$50,000, for an aggregate principal amount outstanding as of December 31, 2023 under the Working Capital Note of \$705,000. The Working Capital Note was issued to provide us with additional working capital during the period prior to consummation of the Business Combination Agreement with GigCapital5. The Working Capital Note is interest-free and originally matured on the earlier of (i) the date on which we consummated the Business Combination with GigCapital5, Inc.; (ii) the date we wind up; or (iii) December 31, 2023. On March 4, 2024, the Working Capital Note was agreed to be amended and subordinated pursuant to and in accordance with the terms of the Business Combination Agreement. Effective on the closing of the Business Combination, the Working Capital Note cannot be repaid prior to the repayment or conversion of the Pre-Paid Advance received from Yorkville.

On March 4, 2024, we assumed the \$1,560,000 outstanding balance of the Extension Note from a related party and pursuant to the Business Combination Agreement. The Extension Note does not bear any interest and cannot be repaid prior to the repayment of the Pre-Paid Advance received from Yorkville.

# **Cash Flows**

The following table provides information regarding our cash flows for the periods presented:

	For Six Months Ended June 30,			
		2024		2023
Net cash used in operating activities	\$	(6,955,081)	\$	(1,521,397)
Net cash used in investing activities		(26,977)		(1,125)
Net cash provided by financing activities		11,398,512		1,303,481
Net increase (decrease) in cash and restricted cash and cash equivalents	\$	4,416,454	\$	(219,041)

#### Net Cash Used In Operating Activities

Net cash used in operating activities was \$6,955,081 for the six months ended June 30, 2024 as compared to \$1,521,397 for the six months ended June 30, 2023. The primary use of our cash was to fund research and development and general and administrative expenses. Net cash used for the six months ended June 30, 2024 consisted of a net loss of \$5,547,464, adjusted for non-cash expenses primarily including depreciation and amortization of \$184,775, stock-based compensation of \$38,984, fair value of common stock issued in exchange for services and in connection with non-redemption agreements of \$3,718,349, issuance of common stock in connection with a stock subscription agreement of \$206,000, warrant modification expense of \$200,513, non-cash interest of \$1,200,670, decrease in warrant liability of \$190,819, decrease in derivative liability of \$4,712,800, increase in earnout liability of \$750,000, and the net change in operating assets and liabilities of \$2,792,703. The net change in operating assets and liabilities was primarily due an increase accounts receivable of \$669,138, an increase in prepaid expenses and other current assets of \$553,691, a decrease in accounts payable of \$2,280,535, a decrease in other liabilities of \$377,772, and a decrease of deferred revenue of \$315,873, partially offset by a decrease in inventory of \$1,352,734 and an increase in accrued expenses and other current liabilities of \$51,572.

Net cash used for the six months ended June 30, 2023 consisted of a net loss of \$3,212,961, adjusted for non-cash expenses including depreciation and amortization of \$232,861, stock-based compensation of \$417,255, non-cash interest of \$21,545, and non-cash operating lease expense of \$4,124, and the net change in operating assets and liabilities of \$1,023,903. The net change in operating assets and liabilities was primarily due to a decrease in inventory of \$53,869, an increase in accounts payable of \$785,744, a decrease in other assets of \$10,000, and an increase in other liabilities of \$238,814, partially offset primarily by an increase in prepaid expenses and other current assets of \$40,550 and a decrease in accrued expenses and other current liabilities of \$23,974.

# Net Cash Used In Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities was \$26,977 for the six months ended June 30, 2024 as compared to \$1,125 for the six months ended June 30, 2023. The use of net cash used in investing activities for both periods was related to the purchase of property and equipment.

#### Net Cash Provided By Financing Activities

During the six months ended June 30, 2024, net cash provided by financing activities was \$11,398,512, primarily due to \$10,525,000 of net proceeds received from issuance of long-term debt related to the Yorkville Pre-Paid Advance and the Cable Car Loan, net proceeds of \$1,238,530 received from the Merger, and cash proceeds of \$500,000 received from issuance of common stock pursuant to a subscription agreement, partially offset by repayment of the bridge loans of \$800,000, and repayments against the PPP loans of \$65,018.

During the six months ended June 30, 2023, net cash provided by financing activities was \$1,303,481, primarily due to \$1,017,850 of net proceeds from the sale of QT Imaging common stock and QT Imaging warrants and \$350,000 of proceeds received from a related party for the Working Capital Loan, partially offset by repayments against the PPP loans of \$64,369.

# **Future Funding Requirements**

We expect to incur increased significant expenses in connection with our ongoing activities, particularly as we continue the research and development of our products and product candidates, seek expanded regulatory clearances for the QT Breast Scanner, and build a U.S. sales and marketing team. As part of the effort to build the sales and marketing capabilities in the United States, QT Imaging entered into the Distribution Agreement, pursuant to which QT Imaging appointed NXC as the non-exclusive agent for the sale of QT Imaging products and services in non-exclusive territories: the U.S., U.S. territories, and U.S. Department of Defense installations. Since our consummation of the Merger, we expect to incur additional costs associated with operating as a public company. Our future funding requirements, both short-and long-term, will depend on many factors, including, without limitation:

- Having the cash to repay our debt obligations as they come due;
- Expand our current manufacturing operations and expand existing and build new partnerships with contract manufacturing third-party vendors;
- Purchase inventory for our planned shipments;
- Expand or enhance our distribution with third-party distribution channels;
- The progress and results of our trials and interpretation of those results by the FDA (and other regulatory authorities, as required);
- Seek regulatory clearances for product candidates and expanded regulatory clearance for the QT Breast Scanner;
- The cost of operating as a public company, including hiring additional personnel as well as increased director and officer insurance premiums, audit and legal fees, investor relations fees and expenses related to compliance with public company reporting requirements under the Exchange Act and rules implemented by the SEC and Nasdaq; and
- The costs and timing of preparing, filing and prosecuting patent applications, maintaining and enforcing our intellectual property rights and defending our intellectual property-related claims.

We plan to continue to incur substantial costs in order to conduct research and development activities necessary to develop a commercialized product. Additional capital will be needed to undertake these activities and commercialization efforts. We intend to raise such capital through the issuance of additional equity, borrowings and potential strategic alliances with other companies. If we raise additional capital through debt financing, we may be subject to covenants limiting or restricting our ability to take specific actions, such as incurring additional debt, making capital expenditures or declaring dividends. If such financing is not available at adequate levels or on acceptable terms, we could be required to significantly reduce operating expenses and delay, reduce the scope of or eliminate some of our development programs or our commercialization efforts, out-license intellectual property rights to our product candidates and sell unsecured assets, or a combination of the foregoing, any of which may have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and/or our ability to fund our scheduled obligations on a timely basis, or at all.

Because of the numerous risks and uncertainties associated with manufacturing, research, development and commercialization of products, we are unable to estimate the exact amount of our operating capital requirements. Our future funding requirements will depend on, and could increase significantly as a result of, many factors, including, without limitation:

- The timing, receipt and amount of revenues from the sales of the QT Breast Scanner and related products and services, or any future approved or cleared products and product candidates, if any;
- The cost of future activities, including product sales, medical affairs, marketing, manufacturing and distribution for the QT Breast Scanner;
- The costs, timing, and outcomes of regulatory review of applications for expanded clearances for the QT Breast Scanner and clearance for other products;
- The scope, progress, results and costs of researching, developing and manufacturing our product candidates or any future product candidates, and conducting studies and clinical trials;
- The timing of, and the costs involved in, obtaining regulatory approvals or clearances for our product candidates or any future product candidates;
- The cost of manufacturing our product candidates or any future product candidates and any products we successfully commercialize, including costs associated with building out our manufacturing capabilities;
- The cost and time needed to attract and retain skilled personnel to support our continued growth;
- Our ability to establish and maintain strategic collaborations, licensing or other arrangements and the financial terms of any such agreements that we may enter into; and
- The costs associated with being a public company.

Additionally, our operating plans may change, and we may need additional funds to meet operational needs and capital requirements for future trials and other research and development activities. Until such time, if ever, as we can generate substantial product revenue, we expect to finance our cash needs through a combination of public or private equity offerings, debt financings, collaborations, strategic partnerships or marketing, distribution or licensing arrangements with third parties. To the extent that we raise additional capital through the sale of equity or convertible debt securities, the ownership interest of our stockholders may be materially diluted, and the terms of such securities could include liquidation or other preferences that adversely affect the rights of our shareholders. Debt financing and preferred equity financing, if available, may involve agreements that include restrictive covenants that limit our ability to take specified actions, such as incurring additional debt, making capital expenditures or declaring dividends. In addition, debt financing would result in increased fixed payment obligations.

If we raise funds through collaborations, strategic partnerships or marketing, distribution or licensing arrangements with third parties, we may have to relinquish valuable rights to our technologies, future revenue streams, research programs or products, or grant licenses on terms that may not be favorable to us.

If we are unable to raise additional funds when needed, we may be required to delay, reduce, or eliminate our product development or future commercialization efforts, or grant rights to develop and market products that we would otherwise prefer to develop and market ourselves.

Our ability to continue as a going concern is dependent upon our ability to successfully accomplish these plans and secure sources of financing and attain profitable operations. If we are unable to obtain adequate capital, we could be forced to cease operations. See the section titled "*Risk Factors*" for additional factors and risks associated with our capital requirements.

#### **Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements**

We did not have during the periods presented, and we do not currently have, any off-balance sheet arrangements.

# **Contractual Obligations**

We lease our operating facilities in Novato, California, under a non-cancelable operating lease through May 31, 2027. There are no options or rights to extend the term of this lease.

# Contingencies

# Litigation

We are subject to occasional lawsuits, investigations and claims arising out of the normal course of business. As of the date the condensed consolidated financial statements were available to be issued, management is not aware of any pending claims that will have a material impact on our condensed consolidated financial statements.

# **Emerging Growth Company**

We are an emerging growth company ("EGC"), as defined in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012 ("JOBS Act"), following the consummation of the Business Combination. Under the JOBS Act, emerging growth companies can delay adopting new or revised accounting standards issued subsequent to the enactment of the JOBS Act until such time as those standards apply to private companies. We have elected to use this extended transition period for complying with new or revised accounting standards that have different effective dates for public and private companies until the earlier of the date we (i) are no longer an emerging growth company, or (ii) affirmatively and irrevocably opt out of the extended transition period financial statements may not be comparable to companies that comply with new or revised accounting pronouncements as of public company effective dates.

In addition, we intend to rely on the other exemptions and reduced reporting requirements provided by the JOBS Act. Subject to certain conditions set forth in the JOBS Act, if, as an EGC, we intend to rely on such exemptions, we are not required to, among other things: (i) provide an auditor's attestation report on our system of internal controls over financial reporting pursuant to Section 404(b) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act; (ii) provide all of the compensation disclosure that may be required of non-emerging growth public companies under the Dodd- Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act; (iii) comply with any requirement that may be adopted by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) regarding mandatory audit firm rotation or a supplement to the auditor's report providing additional information about the audit and the financial statements (auditor discussion and analysis); and (iv) disclose certain executive compensation-related items such as the correlation between executive compensation and performance and comparisons of the Chief Executive Officer's compensation to median employee compensation.

We will remain an EGC under the JOBS Act until the earliest of (i) the last day of our first fiscal year following the fifth anniversary of the closing of the Business Combination, (ii) the last date of our fiscal year in which we have total annual gross revenue of at least \$1.235 billion, (iii) the date on which we are deemed to be a "large accelerated filer," as defined in Rule 12b-2 promulgated under the Exchange Act, or (iv) the date on which we have issued more than \$1.0 billion in non-convertible debt securities during the previous three-years.

# **Critical Accounting and Estimates**

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based on our condensed consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP"). The preparation of these condensed consolidated financial statements requires us to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses and the related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate these estimates, and assumptions, including those related to revenue, inventory and income taxes, among others. Our estimates are derived from historical experience, current conditions and various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities as well as identifying and assessing the accounting treatment with respect to commitments and contingencies. Our actual results may materially differ from these estimates. In addition, any change in these estimates or their underlying assumptions could have a material adverse effect on our operating results.

We believe that the accounting policies discussed below are critical to the understanding of our historical and future performance, and these accounting policies involve a significant degree of judgment and complexity. For further information, see the notes to our audited consolidated financial statements attached as Exhibit 99.1 to the Amendment No. 1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed on March 25, 2024.

# **Revenue Recognition**

Revenue is recognized when a customer obtains control of promised goods or services. The amount of revenue recognized reflects the consideration we expect to be entitled to receive in exchange for these goods or services.

We determine revenue recognition through the following steps:

# 1. Identification of the contract, or contracts, with a customer:

We consider the terms and conditions of the contract in identifying the contracts. We determine a contract with a customer to exist when the contract is approved, each party's rights regarding the goods or services to be transferred can be identified, the payment terms for the goods or services can be identified, it has been determined the customer has the ability and intent to pay, and the contract has commercial substance. At contract inception, we evaluate whether two or more contracts should be combined and accounted for as a single contract and whether the combined or single contract includes more than one performance obligation. We apply judgment in determining the customer's ability and intent to pay, which is based on a variety of factors, including the customer's historical payment experience or, in the case of a new customer, credit and financial information pertaining to the customer.

#### 2. Identification of the performance obligations in the contract:

Performance obligations promised in a contract are identified based on the goods or services that will be transferred to the customer that are both capable of being distinct, whereby the customer can benefit from the goods or services either on its own or together with other resources that are readily available from third parties or from us, and are distinct in the context of the contract, whereby the transfer of the goods or services is separately identifiable from other promises in the contract. Our performance obligations consist of (i) product sales, (ii) maintenance contracts and (iii) other services including training.

# 3. Determination of the transaction price:

The transaction price is determined based on the consideration to which we expect to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to the customer. Variable consideration is included in the transaction price if, in our judgment, it is probable that a significant future reversal of cumulative revenue under the contract will not occur. Our contracts do not contain a significant financing component.

# 4. Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract:

If the contract contains a single performance obligation, the entire transaction price is allocated to the single performance obligation. Contracts that contain multiple performance obligations require an allocation of the transaction price to each performance obligation based on a relative standalone selling price.

#### 5. Recognition of revenue when, or as a performance obligation is satisfied:

For product sales and services, revenue is recognized at the time the related performance obligation is satisfied by transferring the control of the promised goods or services to a customer, in an amount that reflects the consideration that we expect to receive in exchange for those goods or services. Training and maintenance services are generally recognized upon invoicing in amounts that correspond directly with the value to the customer of the performance completed to date which primarily includes professional service arrangements entered on a time and materials basis.

# Inventory

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined using the weighted- average cost method. We periodically reviews the value of items in inventory and provides write-offs of inventory that is obsolete.

Appropriate consideration is given to obsolescence, excessive levels, deterioration, and other factors in evaluating net realizable value. Once inventory has been written down below cost, it is not subsequently written up.

# Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the differences between financial reporting and the tax basis of assets and liabilities and are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse. Deferred tax assets be reduced by a valuation allowance if it is more-likely-than-not that some or all of the deferred tax asset will not be realized. We annually evaluate the realizability of deferred tax assets by assessing the valuation allowance and by adjusting the amount of such allowance, if necessary. The factors used to assess the likelihood of realization include our forecast of future taxable income and available tax planning strategies that could be implemented to realize the net deferred tax assets.

We recognize the financial statement benefit of a tax position only after determining that the relevant tax authority would more-likely-than-not sustain the position following an audit. For tax positions meeting the more-likely-than-not threshold, the amount recognized in the condensed consolidated financial statements is the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement with the relevant tax authority. In accordance with this accounting policy, we recognize accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as a component of income tax benefit.

# **Recent Accounting Pronouncements**

#### **Recent Accounting Pronouncements Adopted**

In August 2020, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2020-06, Debt—Debt with Conversion and Other Options (Subtopic 470-20) and Derivatives and Hedging—Contracts in Entity's Own Equity (Subtopic 815-40): Accounting for Convertible Instruments and Contracts in an Entity's Own Equity. ASU 2020-06 reduces the number of accounting models for convertible instruments and allows more contracts to qualify for equity classification. The Company adopted this guidance effective January 1, 2024, and there was no material impact on the Company's condensed consolidated financial statements upon adoption.

# **Recent Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted**

In November 2023, FASB issued ASU No. 2023-07, Segment Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures, which requires disclosure of incremental segment information on an annual and interim basis. This ASU is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024, and requires retrospective application to all prior periods presented in the financial statements. Early adoption is permitted. We are currently evaluating the impact of the new standard on the condensed consolidated financial statements.

In December 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-09, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures. This ASU is intended to improve the transparency of income tax disclosures by requiring (1) consistent categories and greater disaggregation of information in the rate reconciliation and (2) income taxes paid disaggregated by jurisdiction. It also includes certain other amendments to improve the effectiveness of income tax disclosures. The ASU's amendments are effective for public business entities for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2024. Entities are permitted to early adopt the standard for "annual financial statements that have not yet been issued or made available for issuance." Adoption is either prospectively or retrospectively, we will adopt this ASU on a prospective basis. We are currently evaluating the impact of the new standard on the condensed consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

# Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We are a smaller reporting company as defined by Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act and are not required to provide the information otherwise required under this item.

#### **Item 4. Controls and Procedures**

# Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The term "disclosure controls and procedures," as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act, refers to controls and other procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the company's management, including its principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

# Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As required by Rules 13a-15 and 15d-15 under the Exchange Act, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer carried out an evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of June 30, 2024. Based on their evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) were effective.

# Material Weaknesses Identified

In connection with the preparation of our consolidated financial statements as of and for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, we identified a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting related to lack of segregation of duties around key accounting processes resulting from limited personnel resources.

In connection with the review of our condensed consolidated financial statements as of and for the three months ended March 31, 2024, we identified a material weakness in our internal controls over financial reporting related to technical accounting aspects of certain material transactions.

We have begun implementing remedial measures, and while there can be no assurance that our efforts will be successful, we plan to remediate the material weaknesses. These plans include implementing technology, hiring personnel, and other activities, including engaging external resources.

There were no misstatements identified in the condensed consolidated financial statements as of June 30, 2024 and for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 as a result of these material weaknesses.

# Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Other than the remediation efforts related to the material weaknesses which we have commenced as described above, there were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred in the three months ended June 30, 2024 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

#### Inherent Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls

The effectiveness of any system of internal control over financial reporting, including ours, is subject to inherent limitations, including the exercise of judgment in designing, implementing, operating, and evaluating the controls and procedures, and the inability to eliminate misconduct completely. Accordingly, in designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognizes that any system of internal control over financial reporting, including ours, no matter how well designed and operated, can only provide reasonable, not absolute assurance of achieving the desired control objectives. In addition, the design of disclosure controls and procedures must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and that management is required to apply its judgment in evaluating the benefits of possible controls and procedures relative to their costs. Moreover, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. We intend to continue to monitor and upgrade our internal controls as necessary or appropriate for our business but cannot assure you that such improvements will be sufficient to provide us with effective internal control over financial reporting.

# Part II. Other Information

# **Item 1. Legal Proceedings**

We are not currently subject to any material legal proceedings, nor, to our knowledge, is any material legal proceeding threatened against us or any of our officers or directors in their corporate capacity.

# Item 1A. Risk Factors

As of the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, we supplement the risk factors disclosed in our Annual Report and our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ending March 31, 2024 (the "March 2024 Quarterly Report") with the following risk factors. Any of these risk factors disclosed in our Annual Report, the March 2024 Quarterly Report or herein could result in a significant or material adverse effect on our results of operations or financial condition. Additional risk factors not presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial may also impair our business or results of operations. We may disclose changes to such risk factors or disclose additional risk factors from time to time in our future filings with the SEC.

The forward-looking statements contained in this Quarterly Report are based on our current expectations and beliefs concerning future developments and their potential effects on us. Future developments affecting us may not be those that we have anticipated. These forward-looking statements involve a number of risks, uncertainties (some of which are beyond our control) or other assumptions that may cause actual results or performance to be materially different from those expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements. These risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to, the following risks, uncertainties and other factors:

- our being a development-stage company with limited operating history and significant losses;
- our ability to successfully execute our business model, including market acceptance of our planned products and product candidates at acceptable prices;
- the ability to repay our debt cash obligations as they come due;
- the occurrence of a pandemic, epidemic, or outbreak of infectious disease that may materially or adversely affect our business, financials, and product development;
- our ability to raise additional capital;
- the effect of the Company's debt agreements on its flexibility in operating the business;
- our ability to sustain revenue growth or profitability;
- our plan to do business globally is subject to additional risks and uncertainties;
- the success of key supplier or distribution agreements;
- the risk of incurring uninsured losses;
- the ability to maintain the confidentiality and integrity of the Company's data and other sensitive information;
- the ability of the business to respond to changes in general economic conditions;
- the occurrence of technological changes;
- our success in recruiting and retaining key employees;
- the ability to manage growth effectively;
- our ability to compete and adapt in our industry;
- the outcome of any legal proceedings that may be instituted against our business and other litigation and regulatory risks;
- the ability to obtain clearances and approvals from the FDA for current and future products;
- the effect of unanticipated changes in effective tax rates on operations and financials;
- the ability to adequately protect the Company's intellectual property rights;
- the impact of the terms and conditions of licenses and sublicenses granted by third-parties;
- our management team's limited experience managing a public company;
- our officers and directors allocating their time to other businesses and potentially having conflicts of interest with our business;
- · the effect of the issuance of additional shares of common stock on our stock price;
- future sales, or perception of future sales, of common stock on our stock price;
- our governing documents' effect on stock price and stockholders' ability to gain favorable judicial forums;
- the effect of the Company's warrants on the market price of the common stock;
- future financial performance following the business combination;
- our ability to enforce covenants not to compete;
- the uncertainty of industry data, projections and estimates;
- the effect of write-downs and write-offs that the Company may be required to take;
- the ability to maintain internal controls over financial reports; and
- 51

the other risks and uncertainties discussed in "Risk Factors" and elsewhere in this Quarterly Report.

Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or should any of our assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may vary in material respects from those projected in these forward-looking statements. We undertake no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except as may be required under applicable securities laws.

# We are a development-stage company with limited operating history and significant losses since inception which may make it difficult to evaluate prospects for our future viability and predict our future performance. We may never be able to effectuate our business plan or achieve any meaningful revenue or reach profitability.

We have a limited operating history and only a preliminary and unproven business plan upon which investors may evaluate our prospects. We have not yet demonstrated the commercial viability at scale of our breast imaging technology platform. QT Scanner 2000 Model A, (the "QT Breast Scanner") is deployed at facilities in the United States and abroad, but we have not demonstrated scale of deployment and manufacturing necessary to achieve commercial viability despite having clearance from the FDA for breast imaging with the QT Breast Scanner. Even if we are able to do so, we may not be able to manufacture the QT Breast Scanner device at the costs needed to support our business model. Even if we are able to commercialize some of our products or product candidates, there can be no assurance that we will generate significant revenues or ever achieve profitability. We expect to continue to incur significant sales and marketing, research and development, regulatory and other expenses as we expand our marketing efforts to increase adoption of our products, expand existing relationships, obtain regulatory approvals for our product candidates, conduct clinical studies on our existing and planned product candidates and develop new product candidates or add new features to our existing products. There is no assurance that our distribution partners will succeed in selling and servicing devices in sufficient volumes to help the company meet its business plan, revenue objectives or profitability.

Furthermore, even if our technology and product become commercially viable and deployed at scale, we may not generate sufficient revenue necessary to support our business. We estimate that effectively stimulating market interest in our QT Breast Scanner will require deploying at least 10 devices in clinical use. We may never achieve these thresholds for devices deployed in the near-to-mid-term at any level or at all, which may cause our business to fail. The medical imaging industry is also highly competitive, and our technology, products, services or business models may not achieve widespread market acceptance. If we are unable to address any issues mentioned above, or encounter other problems, expenses, difficulties, complications, and delays in connection with the starting and expansion of our business, our entire business may fail, in which case you may lose your entire investment.

We have a history of net losses and negative cash flow from operations since inception and we expect such losses and negative cash flows from operations to continue in the foreseeable future. As of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, we had a working capital deficit of \$5.8 million and \$2.5 million, respectively, and an accumulated deficit of approximately \$28.5 million and \$17.8 million, respectively. For the three months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, we incurred net losses of approximately \$1.2 million and \$1.3 million, respectively. For the six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, we incurred net losses of approximately \$5.5 million and \$1.2 million, respectively. For the six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, we used cash in operations of \$7.0 million and \$1.5 million, respectively. We anticipate our losses will continue to increase from current levels because we expect to incur additional costs related to developing our business, including research and development costs, manufacturing costs, employee-related costs, costs of complying with government regulations, intellectual property development and prosecution costs, marketing and promotion costs, capital expenditures, general and administrative expenses, and costs associated with operating as a public company.

Our ability to generate revenue from our operations and ultimately achieve profitability will depend on factors including but not limited to whether we can complete the development and commercialization of our QT Breast Scanner breast imaging technology and our future products, whether we can manufacture the QT Breast Scanner and future products on a commercial scale in such amounts and at such costs as we anticipate, and whether we can achieve market acceptance of our products, services and business models. The net losses that we incur may fluctuate significantly from period to period. As a result of these increased expenditures, we will need to generate significant additional revenue in order to offset our operating expenses and achieve and sustain profitability. Accordingly, we may not achieve or maintain profitability, and we may continue to incur significant losses in the future. Even if we achieve profitability, we cannot be sure that we will remain profitable for any substantial period of time. If we do not achieve or sustain profitability, it will be more difficult for us to finance our business and accomplish our strategic objectives, either of which would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects and may cause the market price of common stock to decline.

# Future sales, or the perception of future sales, of common stock by us or our existing stockholders in the public market could cause the market price for our common stock to decline.

The sale of substantial amounts of shares of common stock in the public market, or the perception that such sales could occur, could harm the prevailing market price of shares of our common stock. These sales, or the possibility that these sales may occur, also might make it more difficult for us to sell equity securities in the future at a time and at a price that we deem appropriate.

All shares issued as merger consideration in the Business Combination are freely tradable without registration under the Securities Act and without restriction by persons other than our "affiliates" (as defined under Rule 144), including our directors, executive officers and other affiliates, and certain other former QT Imaging stockholders. Furthermore, although the Lock-Up Agreement provides that, subject to certain exceptions, each of the stockholders who are parties to such agreement will not transfer any shares of common stock received as merger consideration until the earlier of six months following the Closing Date or the occurrence of specified events in the Lock-Up Agreement, the Company will have the ability to modify such transfer restrictions.

The Company has registered in a resale registration statement on Form S-1 declared effective by the SEC on May 22, 2024, securities held by certain stockholders of the Company which have the right, subject to certain conditions, to require us to register the sale of their shares of common stock under the Securities Act, pursuant to the terms of the Registration Rights Agreement. By exercising their registration rights and selling a large number of shares, these stockholders could cause the prevailing market price of shares of common stock to decline.

As restrictions on resale end, the market price of shares of common stock could drop significantly if the holders of these shares sell them or are perceived by the market as intending to sell them. These factors could also make it more difficult for us to raise additional funds through future offerings of shares of common stock or other securities.

In addition, the shares of common stock that will be issued upon exercise of stock options already granted pursuant to the terms of, or those shares of common stock reserved for future issuance under the 2024 Equity Incentive Plan will become eligible for sale in the public market once those shares are issued, subject to provisions relating to various vesting agreements, lock-up agreements and, in some cases, limitations on volume and manner of sale applicable to affiliates under Rule 144, as applicable. We have filed a registration statement on Form S-8 under the Securities Act to register shares of common stock or securities convertible into or exchangeable for shares of common stock issued pursuant to our equity incentive plans, and may in the future file additional registration statements on Form S-8. Any such Form S-8 registration statements will automatically become effective upon filing. Accordingly, shares registered under such registration statements will be available for sale in the open market.

# Sales of shares of our common stock, or the perception of such sales, may have negative pressure on the public trading price of our common stock.

Any stockholders making sales of our common stock will determine the timing, pricing and rate at which they sell the shares. Significant sales of shares of common stock may have negative pressure on the public trading price of our common stock. Even though the current trading price is significantly below the Company's initial public offering price, based on the closing price of the common stock on May 9, 2024, certain private investors may have an incentive to sell their shares because they will still profit on sales due to the lower prices at which they purchased their shares as compared to the public investors.

On August 7, 2024, the closing price of the common stock was \$0.4944 per share. The initial public offering price of our units was \$10.00 per unit, with each unit consisting of one share of common stock and one warrant to purchase one share of common stock at an exercise price of \$11.50 per share, which has now been adjusted to \$2.30 per share.

# It is not possible to predict the actual number of shares we will sell under the SEPA to Yorkville or the actual gross proceeds resulting from those sales. Further, we may not have access to the full amount available under the SEPA with Yorkville.

Effective as of November 15, 2023, we entered into the SEPA with Yorkville, pursuant to which Yorkville has committed to purchase up to \$50,000,000 of shares of common stock, subject to certain limitations and conditions set forth in the SEPA. The common stock that may be issued under the SEPA may be sold by us to Yorkville at our discretion from time to time.

We generally have the right to control the timing and amount of any sales of our Common Stock to Yorkville under the SEPA. Sales of the common stock, if any, to Yorkville under the SEPA will depend upon market conditions and other factors to be determined by us. We may ultimately decide to sell to Yorkville all, some or none of the common stock that may be available for us to sell to Yorkville pursuant to the SEPA.

Because the purchase price per share to be paid by Yorkville for the common stock that we may elect to sell to Yorkville under the SEPA, if any, will fluctuate based on the market prices of the common stock prior to each Advance made pursuant to the SEPA, if any, it is not possible for us to predict, as of the date of this Quarterly Report and prior to any such sales, the number of shares of the common stock that we will sell to Yorkville under the SEPA, the purchase price per share that Yorkville will pay for shares purchased from us under the SEPA, or the aggregate gross proceeds that we will receive from those purchases by Yorkville under the SEPA, if any. Under the terms of the SEPA and the Yorkville Note, the floor price, representing the lowest price at which shares may be issued to Yorkville upon conversion of the Yorkville Note, is the volume-weighted average price of the common stock for the five trading days immediately prior to the effectiveness of the registration statement on Form S-1 that we filed to register the shares to be issued pursuant to the SEPA, which effectiveness occurred on May 22, 2024, or \$0.8768 per share.

Moreover, although the SEPA provides that we may sell up to an aggregate of \$50,000,000 of shares of common stock to Yorkville, only 25,375,000 shares of common stock are being currently registered for resale. If we elect to sell to Yorkville all of the 25,375,000 shares of the common stock being currently registered for resale, depending on the market price of the common stock prior to each advance made pursuant to SEPA, the actual gross proceeds from the sale of all such shares may be substantially less than the \$50,000,000 available to us under the SEPA, which could materially adversely affect our liquidity.

If it becomes necessary for us to issue and sell to Yorkville under the SEPA more than the 25,375,000 shares of the common stock being registered for resale in order to receive aggregate gross proceeds equal to \$50,000,000 under the SEPA, we must file with the SEC one or more additional registration statements to register under the Securities Act the resale by Yorkville of any such additional shares of the common stock we wish to sell from time to time under the SEPA, which the SEC must declare effective. Any issuance and sale by us under the SEPA of the common stock in addition to the 25,375,000 shares of the common stock being registered for resale by Yorkville could cause additional dilution to our stockholders.

We are not required or permitted to issue any shares of common stock under the SEPA if such issuance would breach our obligations under the rules or regulations of Nasdaq. In addition, Yorkville will not be required to purchase any shares of common stock if such sale would result in Yorkville's beneficial ownership exceeding 4.99% of the then issued and outstanding common stock. Our inability to access a part or all of the amount available under the SEPA, in the absence of any other financing sources, could have a material adverse effect on our business.

# If we do not file and maintain a current and effective prospectus relating to the common stock issuable upon exercise of the warrants, holders will only be able to exercise such warrants on a "cashless basis."

Following the declaration by the SEC of our registration statement on Form S-1 on May 22, 2024, we filed a prospectus relating to the common stock issuable upon exercise of the warrants. If we do not file and maintain a current and effective prospectus relating to the common stock issuable upon exercise of the warrants at the time that holders wish to exercise such warrants, they will only be able to exercise them on a "cashless basis" provided that an exemption from registration is available. As a result, the number of shares of common stock that holders will receive upon exercise of the warrants will be fewer than it would have been had such holder exercised its warrant for cash. Further, if an exemption from registration is not available, holders would not be able to exercise on a cashless basis and would only be able to exercise their warrants for cash if a current and effective prospectus relating to the common stock issuable upon exercise of the warrants is available. Under the terms of the Warrant Agreement, dated as of September 23, 2021, between GigCapital5 and the Transfer Agent (the "Warrant Agreement"), we have agreed to use our best efforts to meet these conditions and to file and maintain a current and effective prospectus relating to the common stock issuable upon exercise of the warrants. However, we cannot assure you that we will be able to do so. If we are unable to do so, the potential "upside" of the holder's investment in us may be reduced or the warrants may expire worthless.

# Certain of the Company's warrants are accounted for as a warrant liability and were recorded at fair value upon issuance with changes in fair value each period reported in earnings, which may have an adverse effect on the market price of the common stock.

As of June 30, 2024, 889,364 Private Placement Warrants and Working Capital Note Warrants were outstanding. These warrants became exercisable 30 days after completion of the Business Combination and are exercisable now that we have an effective registration statement under the Securities Act covering the shares of common stock of the Company issuable upon exercise for so long as a current prospectus relating to them is available and such shares are registered, qualified or exempt from registration under the securities, or blue sky, laws of the state of residence of the holder (or the Company permits holders to exercise their warrants on a cashless basis under certain circumstances). Furthermore, the Company may redeem outstanding warrants in certain circumstances; provided, however, that these warrants will not be redeemable by the Company so long as they are held by the initial purchasers or any of its permitted transferees, to which the initial purchaser transferred the Private Placement Warrants and then their settlement provisions to determine whether they should be accounted for as a warrant liability or as equity. Any settlement amount not equal to the difference between the fair value of a fixed number of the Company's equity shares and a fixed monetary amount precludes these warrants, when held by someone other than the initial purchasers or their permitted transferees, will be redeemable by the Company, the requirements for accounting for these warrants as equity are not satisfied. Therefore, the Company's required to account for these warrants as a warrant liability and record (a) that liability at fair value, and (b) any subsequent changes in fair value as of the end of each period for which earnings are reported. The impact of changes in fair value on earnings may have an adverse effect on the market price of common stock of the Company.

# Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

Except with respect to the following, all unregistered sales of equity securities during and since the end of the reporting period have been previously disclosed in Current Reports on Form 8-K.

On April 22, 2024, the Company entered into a subscription agreement (the "Subscription Agreement") with Sea Otter Trading, LLC (the "Subscriber"). Pursuant to the Subscription Agreement, the Company agreed to issue to the Subscriber, an aggregate of 4,200 shares of common stock in consideration for services rendered by the Subscriber. The issuance was made in a transaction not involving a public offering pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act, in reliance upon Section 4(a)(2) of the 1933 Act and Rule 506(b) of Regulation D ("Regulation D") as promulgated by the SEC under the Securities Act.

# Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

Not Applicable.

# Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not Applicable.

# **Item 5. Other Information**

None.

[tem	6.	Exhibits	

Item 0. Exhibits	
Exhibit No.	Description
10.1†*	Services Agreement, dated as of April 1, 2024 and entered into on April 5, 2024, by and between QT Imaging Center and QT Imaging Holdings, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to QT Imaging Holdings' Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on April 8, 2024)
10.2*	Data Use and License Agreement, dated April 3, 2024, by and between QT Imaging Center and QT Imaging Holdings, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to QT Imaging Holdings' Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on April 8, 2024).
10.3*	Space and Equipment Sublease, dated as of April 1, 2024, by and among QT Imaging Holdings, Inc. and QT Imaging Center. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to QT Imaging Holdings' Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on April 19, 2024)
10.4*	Distribution Agreement, dated as of June 18, 2024, by and among QT Imaging Holdings, Inc. and NXC Imaging, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to QT Imaging Holdings' Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 25, 2024)
31.1	Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Securities Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a) and 15(d)-14(a), as adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2	Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Securities Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a) and 15(d)-14(a), as adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
32.1**	Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002
32.2**	Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002
101.INS	Inline XBRL Instance Document – the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL document.
101.CAL	Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
101.SCH	Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101.DEF	Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
101.LAB	Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase Document
101.PRE	Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document
104	Cover Page Interactive Data File (as formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101)

\* Previously filed and incorporated herein by reference.

- <sup>†</sup> Certain portions of this exhibit (indicated by "[\*\*\*]") have been omitted pursuant to Item 601(b)(10)(iv) of Regulation S-K because it is not material and is the type of information that the Registrant treats as private or confidential. The Registrant agrees to furnish supplementally a copy of such schedules, or any section thereof, to the SEC upon request.
- \*\* The certifications attached as Exhibit 32.1 and Exhibit 32.2 that accompany this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q are not deemed filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and are not to be incorporated by reference into any filing of the Registrant under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, whether made before or after the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, irrespective of any general incorporation language contained in such filing.

# SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Dated: August 8, 2024

Dated: August 8, 2024

QT IMAGING HOLDINGS, INC.

/s/ Dr. Raluca Dinu

Name: Dr. Raluca Dinu Title: Chief Executive Officer

/s/ Anastas Budagov

Name: Anastas Budagov Title: Chief Financial Officer